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ANNUAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
take no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
announcement.

This announcement, for which the directors of Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information
with regard to Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this announcement misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this
announcement have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Asian Capital Resources
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responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to
Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived
at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESEReS

Chairman’s Statement

| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December 2011.

Since 2010, the Company entered into strategic alliance with
a local internet carrier to deploy the iPTV services to selective
blocks of subscribers as trial run, to test the maturity of the
system, and the interactive features of the Internet in order to
reach critical masses following the launch.

The regulatory frame work of iPTV in China consists of a
complex combination of traditional TV regulatory measures,
access regulations, and regulation of resources in the IP
platform. The Company has endeavored to satisfy the
customers’ expectations, and navigate the regulatory
framework through prudent and careful assessment, prior to
engage itself into large scale investment and marketing
campaign to promote the services. We are pleased to report
that in 2011, our operating subsidiary managed to secure
good advertising programs to finance the ongoing trial run of
the services and achieved certain predictable results.
However, due to the fact that there are still a number of
different standards for iPTV provisions, and these standards
are not interoperable and can, therefore, create lock in
situations, where the consumer will have difficulties leaving a
service provider, as this requires change of hardware and
getting used to new user interfaces.

In order to expand the businesses of the division, and the
recognition of increasing popularity and the expansion of the
market scale, which ultimately will attract more content
providers, content aggregators and value added service
providers similar to the Company to enter, the Management
entered into discussions with a number of value-added
services providers in China during the late quarter of 2011 to
explore on mutually beneficial business models and possible
vertical integration to enhance the services and scope of
business opportunities for the Group. The Board is pleased to
report that good progress has been achieved to expand the
revenue generating ability of the group in the near future.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Recent market studies conducted by the Group’s strategic
team directed to the focus on residential market and high-
profit customer base, which the Company had been trying to
develop by engaging in various joint-venture discussions with
PRC developers to service their “residential communities” on
value added services on video and IP applications. The
Management believes that better deployment of technologies
and service coverage can be achieved by this division of the
Group in the next two years.

During the past year, there was a 2.37% decrease in the
turnover of the Group for 2011, and the loss for the year
decrease from HK$115,502,000 of 2010 to 17,419,000 of
2011. The increase in loss for the year is attributable to the
prudent provision made for asset impairment loss in respect of
the intangible assets of the Group. Whilst the increase in profit
of the Group had be attributed to the write back from closure
of subsidiaries, the Board is confident that having significantly
reduced it's Group operating costs, and having disposed of
the non-profit making subsidiaries with the Group, that with a
more positive economic climate in 2012, with the revenue the
Group hopes to generate from the IPTV division, and with the
research and future development of potential project
investments that bring synergy between the IPTV division and
knowledge drawn from other divisions, that the Group will be
able to achieve profitability in the forseeable future.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers, vendors,
banks business partners, consultants and shareholders for
their support and trust generously given to the Group. The
Board also expresses gratitude to the management and staff
for their work and dedication during the past years.

Xie Xuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwm MO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and loss attributable to shareholders

The total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 was approximately HK$6,964,000 (2010:
HK$HK$7,133,000) which was slightly decreased by
approximately 2.37% as compared to that of the previous
financial year.

The audited consolidated loss from operations for the year
ended 31 December 2010 was approximately HK$17,419,000
which has decreased by 84.92% compared with the
corresponding period last year, HK$115,502,000. The
substantial decrease in loss for the year is mainly attributable
to the reduction in provision made for impairment loss from
2010’s HK$55,023,000 to HK$29,981,000.

The intangible assets of the Group are comprised of the IPTV
permit, namely the “Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On
Web Permit” (15 B A8 B F 518 2 &0 B 57 1] %) (the “Permit”)
currently held by Guangzhou Wavecom Communications and
Advertising Limited (“Guangzhou Wavecom”). Guangzhou
Wavecom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
possession of the Permit allows Guangzhou Wavecom’s
subsidiary South Pearl Limited, to operate the Group’s IPTV
division in the greater southern China region. The Permit has
been granted by Guangzhou Television Broadcast Microwave
General Station (“Guangzhou Television Station”) to
Guangzhou Wavecom. Possession of the Permit allows, and is
a prerequisite to South Pearl Limited being able to act as the
exclusive service provider of Guangzhou Television Station’s
programmes, advertising and other IPTV services within the
greater southern China region. The Permit commenced on 1
October 2007 and will expire on 30 September 2015

The Gain on Deregistration is a mainly resulted from the
deregistration of Asian Information Resources Techlogic
Limited (“AIR Techlogic”) during the reporting period, which
prior to its deregistration was the beneficial owner of 60% of
the entire issued share capital of Ever-OK International Co.,
Limited (“Ever-OK”). Prior to the discontinuation of the
business operations of Ever-OK, Ever-OK operated the
Group’s logistics division. As part of discontinuance of the
business operations of Ever-OK, and in order to reduce the
Company’s potential liabilities, the Board determined it was in
the best interests of the Company and the Company’s
shareholders as a whole to initiate the deregistration of AIR
Techlogic.

The Group’s gross profit margin increased from 76.45 % for

the year ended 31 December 2010 to 80.23% for the current
period.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 was approximately HK$6,735,000 (2010:
HK$2,476,000) which was increased by approximately 172%
as compared to that of the same period of last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s
borrowing consists of an amount due to the Company’s
immediate holding company of HK$21,411,000, and an
amount due to a director of HK$5,276,000. The Group had a
cash balance of approximately HK$655,000 (2010:
HK$6,504,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy to
maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars, or in
the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries, maintaining
a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 has increased from HK$98,841,799 as at 31
December 2010 to HK$108,268,799.

Gearing Ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided by
the total capital plus net debt, was 337.72% (2010: 217.46%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group employed
a total of 17 employees (as at 31 December 2010: 18), of
which 3 were located in Hong Kong and the remaining 14
were located in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration policies
are in line with the prevailing market practices and formulated
on the basis of performance and experience of the employees.
The salary and related benefits of the employees are rewarded
on a performance related basis and the general remuneration
structure of the Group is subject to review annually.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwm MO

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

Deregistration and Winding-Up of various Subsidiaries in
the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the operating
costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within the Group which
no longer add value to, nor generate any income attributable
to the Group, should be deregistered, or voluntarily wound up.

Those subsidiaries which are currently in the deregistration
process are: Asian Information Resources Consultants
Limited, Sinobase Asia Limited and Sino Resource
Investments Limited.

Those subsidiaries which have been deregistered during the
period are: Asian Information Resources Investment (Holdings)
Limited (BVI), AIR Logistics International Holdings Limited,
Asian Information Resources Techlogic Limited and Advent
Development Limited.

Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily wound
up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting Limited,
BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network Limited.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group sought to further
enlarge its revenue base through the further development of
the Group’s IPTV division which currently provides IPTV value
added services to the greater southern China region. The
Company has a sufficient level of operations in its IPTV division
and has sufficient assets to operate its business as a going
concern. The Company does not have any financial difficulties
to an extent which may seriously impair the Company’s ability
to continue its business. The Company also has, in addition to
those assets held by the IPTV division, sufficient assets to
operate its business due to the continuing support of the
Company’s immediate holding company.

The Board, looking forward, is contemplating transferring the
investment operations of the Group, which will allow the
Company to focus on project investments which will derive
value for the Company’s shareholders, and pave the way for
the Company’s future growth, both in terms of revenue
streams and profits achieved from its business operations.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Performance of operating divisions

Information Technology Division

Since 2010, the Company entered into strategic alliance with
a local internet carrier to deploy the iIPTV services to selective
blocks of subscribers as trial run, to test the maturity of the
system, and the interactive features of the Internet in order to
reach critical masses following the launch.

The regulatory frame-work of iPTV in China consists of a
complex combination of traditional TV regulatory measures,
access regulations, and regulation of resources in the IP
platform. The Company has endeavored to satisfy the
customers’ expectations, and navigate the regulatory
framework through prudent and careful assessment, prior to
engage itself into large scale investment and marketing
campaign to promote the services. We are pleased to report
that in 2011, our operating subsidiary managed to secure
good advertising programs to finance the ongoing trial run of
the services and achieved certain predictable results.
However, due to the fact that there are still a number of
different standards for iPTV provisions, and these standards
are not interoperable and can, therefore, create lock in
situations, where the consumer will have difficulties leaving a
service provider, as this requires change of hardware and
getting used to new user interfaces.

In order to expand the businesses of the division, and the
recognition of increasing popularity and the expansion of the
market scale, which ultimately will attract more content
providers, content aggregators and value added service
providers similar to the Company to enter, the Management
entered into discussions with a number of value-added
services providers in China during the later quarter of 2011 to
explore on mutually beneficial business models and possible
vertical integration to enhance the services and scope of
business opportunities for the Group. The Board is pleased to
report that good progress has been achieved to expand the
revenue generating ability of the group in the near future.

Recent market studies conducted by the Group’s strategic
team directed to the focus on residential market and high-
profit customer base, which the Company had been trying to
develop by engaging in various joint-venture discussions with
PRC developers to service their “residential communities” on
value added services on video and IP applications. The
Management believes it can be achieved better performance
by this division of the Group in the next two years with better
deployment of technologies and service coverage.
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The Board is anxiously looking forward to the expansion of the
Company’s core expertise in the area of value-added service
and to lead and restructure the operations of the Company in
the direction as stated above, following the complete
discontinuation of the logistic services of the Company.

Financial Consultancy
Apart from the aforementioned operations, the Group
continues to research, develop and explore investment
opportunities which are strategic to its business operations
and which will contribute significantly to the return of the
Company’s shareholders.

With the acquisition of Vega International Group Limited
(“Vega”), which is principally engaged in the provision of
services in corporate finance and investment, project planning
and development, technology project brokerage services,
corporate development services, management consulting and
post-acquisition advisory and professional management
services, the Board had been researching, developing and
exploring further opportunities for development in the
corporate finance sector which the Board envisages will further
contribute to the current revenue streams generated by the
Group.

In relation to the corporate finance sector, the Board is now
planning to devote more of the Group’s resources towards
expanding the provision of financial consultancy services to
business sectors that complement and have synergy with the
household consumers and media services that the IPTV
division of the Company is presently pursuing. The Board
envisages that it will enlarge the service base of Vega in the
forthcoming reporting periods, paving the way for the Group
to devote more of its resources to the further development of
the Group’s emerging corporate finance division which the
Board expects will derive value for the Company’s
shareholders, and pave the way for the Company’s future
growth.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The material litigation and contingent liabilities affecting the
Group as at 31 December 2011 are set out in note 33 in the
accompanying notes to the financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of the significant subsequent events of the Group are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Xuan

Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 42, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has over
19 years of successful investment and management
experience in the areas of property and logistics in the
People’s Republic of China. He graduated from Jinan
University, the PRC with a degree in International Economics.

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 42, joined the Group in October 2008. Mr. Qiu
graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s Republic
of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree. Mr. Qiu had
worked in the advertising business for more than 12 years and
was the general manager of Guangzhou Wavecom
Communication and Advertising Limited from 1992 to 2006,
and is now the general manager of South Pearl Limited, both
companies having been acquired by the Company on 24
December 2007.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond

Vice Chairman

Mr. Lo, aged 59, is the Principal of an investment and
corporate finance firm with offices in London and Hong Kong.
Trained as a Chartered Accountant in England & Wales, he
also qualified as a Canadian Chartered Accountant. Mr. Lo is
now licensed as a Responsible Officer by the Securities &
Futures Commission of Hong Kong for providing Type 6
(corporate finance) advisory. He has extensive expertise and
experience in international corporate finance, mergers &
acquisitions, cross-border direct investments, with emphases
in lifestyle, real estate and hospitality sectors.

He held directorate level or strategist positions with
multinational financial and emerging companies internationally.
Besides the Company, he currently serves as the non-
executive chairman of the Board of Luk Fook Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 0590), and as an
independent non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited (stock code 0755). All of these companies
are listed in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lo graduated from the University of Wisconsin — Madison
in business administration and read law at the University of
Hong Kong and at the Universities in California. He also holds
various post-graduate degrees or professional designations in
accountancy, corporate finance, real estate and hospitality
disciplines.
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EENSREEAEBEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 66, holds a Master degree in Economics. He is
currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar at a
number of colleges and universities in the PRC and abroad.
He has published more than 262 papers and 18 books in the
areas of economics, finance and management.

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 40, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a PHD in theorectic economics from the Beijing
University, the People’s Republic of China. Presently he is the
department head and researcher of Real Estates Finance
Research Center, of the Beijing University Economics Faculty.
Dr. Feng is an independent compliance advisor in the publicly
listed company Sky Land Resources Limited, and is an
independent director in the publicly listed company Guang Yu
Development Limited, both companies being listed in the
People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zhang, aged 40, is a Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Tax Agent in the PRC. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration.
He has over 18 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and taxation. He is currently a project manager in a firm of
certified public accountants in the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lum Pak Sum

Company Secretary

Mr. Lum, aged 51, holds a master degree in business
administration from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom, and a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) (Honors) degree from
the University of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. He is
currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr. Lum
has over 19 years’ experience in the financial field, the money
market and capital market.

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John

Senior Accountant

Mr. Kong, aged 53, joined the Group in October 2005. Mr.
Kong holds a Master of Science Degree in Applied Accounting
and Finance from the Baptist University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Kong has over 12 years experience in
commercial accounting field.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit/(loss) before
taxation for the year ended 31 December 2011 by principal
activities is as follows:
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Profit/(loss)

before

taxation

Turnover BrBianaR

1 (§518)

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FET

By Principal activities: BREEEBKES

IPTV services B BB AR RTE 6,719 (513)
Content Solution A e AR TS 245 3,807
6,964 3,294

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2011 by geographical areas is as
follows:

AEEBE—_T——F+-_A=1+—HLFE
B e D 2 EEBNFRAERITOT

Loss before

taxation

Turnover Bx¥ia

I E518

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FH&T

By geographical areas: iR E D

Hong Kong B — 16,742
PRC = 6,964 (45,152)
6,964 (28,410)
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 30 to 119 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 120.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 11 October 2010 the Company, pursuant to the acquisition
agreement as described in the Company’s circular dated 28
February 2008, issued in aggregate HK$86,349,999 of zero-
coupon convertible notes convertible at the initial Conversion
Price of HK$0.218 per Share with 24-month maturity, in the
amounts of HK$76,272,955 of Convertible Notes were issued
to Asian Dynamics International Limited and approximately
HK$10,077,044 of Convertible Notes were issued to Lucky
Peace Limited.

As at 31 December 2011 there were outstanding and in issue
in aggregate HK$66,017,139 of zero-coupon convertible
notes convertible at the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.218
per Share with 24-month maturity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this annual
report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25% of the
Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all times
been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2010: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are
as follows:

Sales
the largest customer 79%
five largest customers combined 100%
Purchases
the largest supplier 100%

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors,
their associates, nor any shareholders who own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers during the year.

—T— R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

ARFHAEARAT LHESZEREE

RAFHRTER 2 HBRERAIITHE - RIEAX
ARIREBEMREBZARER  UERRESAT
M EERRARABAT —EBEBEARTZH L
MEBTHRAZRLD25%  FHEAIZEIR EHR
BIZE 1123182 HRE »

i
ARRRAEERFER 2 EEZHFEDHE
RER A MR T 25 MR A SR B WK -

a5k Z it e
R-Z——&F+-A=+—8  REMEES
EREGIRAD T ZARETR - ADF L mA
A RTRE HE(C2—TF @) -

EREFRMERS
FR - AEEEEES REEEREHEER
BB AT -

HE
BRARF 79%
AREFAR 100%
XA
BAMLER 100%

WERA FRAEES REZBMEALE
BARARBEHITRAS% AL ZBR - &R
AEBAREFP R/ SIREAHEEHERENE

N/ oadE N
ey =S o
J:IIL* I

TSMEE (R BRAF

15



16

Annual Report 2011

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FE e

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)
Mr. Qiu Yue

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Andrew James Chandler (resigned on 23 November 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Dr. Feng Ke

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Xie Xuan and Dr. Feng Ke shall retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for reelection at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors to be proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has an
unexpired service contract that is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or subsisted during the year.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
3(p) to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions disclosed in note 25 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements constitute
the connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors of the Company had reviewed the
connected transactions of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2011 and have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

()  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of Group;

either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favorable than those available to or from independent
third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions;

(i) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv)  the aggregate amount of each of these transactions falls
within the de minimis exemption for the connected
transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

(A)

Interests and short positions of the Directors in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the Shares, underlying Shares, or
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFO”)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in
the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company

fEam i R

(A

ESNEATRAEABEENRG - A
Ry REH 2R RIRE

R-B——F+-_A=+—H &ARQF
EERTBAER AR A R E AR EE
(EERBHMIEER - £571FEXV
#B) 2 Bty - B HEFTEA (a)
AREBEEZEBMEEROIEXVEFT RS
DEBAIE AN R A R MR P 2 fE i SOR A
(BIRERIEE T MRS 50 % F 5 R AR
EREEREA 2 AR - H(b)A
RIRE 75 M 1B 151 58 352 IR A 8 M 7%
RFTIEE M A BEm AR © H ()R
RIZEIEIR EMARAIAE EMBEITAE
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Number of issued shares held, capacity and nature of interest

e RTRHEE  FHRERRE
Percentage
of the
Company’s
issued
Shares
as at
31 December
Through 2011
spouse or EEATR
Directly minor Through —F—-%
beneficially children controlled  Beneficiary +ZHA=+—-H
owned BBEMEE  corporation of a trust Total ZEBTRE
EREGHE  ARETL BEREEE EERHBA @t oL
Directors
Mr. Xie Xuan — — 546,964,782 — 546,964,782 50.52%
(Note 1)
Mr. Qiu Yue 15,430,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,050,436 3.14%
(Note 2)

15,430,000 - 565,585,218 - 581,015,218 53.66%
Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour House BFET © 5% 5212 %E A& Glamour House
Limited, which is accustomed to acting in Limited + 5% A A8 1 ¥ H 1
accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s instructions —EEHBEEZIETITE
who is its sole director, and which is the I # A Asian Dynamics
beneficial owner as to 67.18% of Asian International Limited &)

Dynamics International Limited. 67.18% Bzt °
Note 2: The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace MiE2 © 3% % 1% )% B A Lucky Peace

Limited, which is incorporated in Samoa, and
which is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

(B) Interests and short positions of the Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company
As at 31 December 2011, so far as was known to the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have, an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares

—T— R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

BREXHEEEIN R_T——F+_A
=t+— A ARAEERITEASMENAR
Al AR REOEE (E & R E 5 LG 5D
SEXVER) 2By - MR RESFFHEAILE
RiIEEF MR GROIEXVHBET7 MDA E
RRA NPz #maoR B (BIERIER 5
KBGO SRR ERE ERE 2 am
FOAR) - RARBEE H NG5S 352 &
FOSRMNRZ IGRPTIE B R MA 2 B megA R + A
RIBIREST AN G AR B MR P 2 i sOR
& o

(B) EERRNAATZH - HEARSK K
RHEZHEHRRRE

R-ZT——F+_A=+—H BEXRQ
AIESAITHAEMM - LA (ER
BIERRITHAERIN) KA M AR
MHPER  WRRLEERBAREE
HFRHEGROIEXVEBE2 M35 AR
ARRRFEEaIORBIT

() RRGHZHFE

Percentage of

the Company’s

issued Shares

as at

31 December

2011

EEAT

R-B——%

Number of —A=+-—H

Name of Shareholder Capacity shares pASY 5]

R & 515 RBEE Byt

Glamour House Limited Interest of a controlled 546,964,782 50.52%
corporation (Note 1)
R rE R (M)

Mr. Chu Yat Hong Interest of a controlled 546,964,782 50.52%
corporation (Note 2)
ZEE R (ME2)

Asian Dynamics International Limited Beneficial owner 546,846,132 50.51%

EnBEEA
Logic Ease Group Limited Beneficial Owner 86,500,000 7.99%

ExBAA

TSMEE (R BRAF
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(i)

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Asian Dynamics
International Limited, which is beneficially owned
as to 67.18% by Glamour House Limited.

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Glamour House
Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 90%
by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, and which is the
beneficial owner as to 67.18% of Asian
Dynamics International Limited.

Long Positions in the Underlying Shares

Long positions in the unlisted zero-coupon
convertible redeemable notes with 24-month
maturity issued on 11 October 2010 (the “2010
Convertible Notes”) of the Company.

(ii)

MisE1 @ 5% 4%7AE A Asian Dynamics
International Limited, Glamour
House Limited & X 67.18% #&
mZEBmBEBA

MiE2 © %% E A Glamour House
Limited * K — fi1 % & A& H
V% EmZEmBEAA M
Glamour House Limited Bl %
Asian Dynamics International
Limited 67.18% 1 2 B 7
BAo

RGBS 2178
EARRIR=Z——F+A+—H
BOAMMR24MAZELENT
BAAKRABERRN(ZF—F
FRRRRER) | 2577 -

Percentage of

the Company’s

Amount of issued Shares

2010 as at

Convertible 31 December

Notes 2011

(HK$) EEAT]

—E-F5 Number of R-B——%

Name of Substantial Capacity and TREER underlying +=H=+-—H

Shareholder nature of interest 22 Shares ZEE TG

TERFEEE S RiEDME (#&w) HRkBHE %4

Perfect Image Group Limited Beneficial Owner 19,931,939 91,430,911 8.44%
EREAA

Blue Balloon Limited Beneficial Owner 18,857,000 86,500,000 7.99%
EREBA

Sweetly Limited Beneficial Owner 18,857,000 86,500,000 7.99%
s TP

Holders of the 2010 Convertible Notes are entitled
to elect to convert 2010 Convertible Notes into
Shares at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per
Share until 10 October 2012.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

—E-EFNBREEEEARRE
R_EBE——F+ A+ HRIELARE
FR0218BTH T —ZF R
MR HBRARD



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no
persons, other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company, whose interests are set out under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, had registered an interest or short
position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company that was required to be recorded under
Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate
granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest in a
business which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any conflicts of
interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited, Mr.
Chu Yat Hong, Mr. Xie Xuan, Mr. Qiu Yue, and Lucky Peace
Limited, as disclosed above, there was no other person as at
31 December 2011 who was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the shares then in issue of the Company and
who was able, as a practicable matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited. Pan-China (H.K.)
CPA Limited retired and offers themselves for re-appointment
as auditors of the Company at the next annual general meeting
of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012

—T— R

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

BREXPIBEEIN R_FT——F+=
RA=+—0 #BEETAAL(RRARES
RATHRABEERSN - 7 F 2 et B £ X
[BEFERAREREBBEAEOBD -
B RES < B ROAR ] —8#) KRR
NENEMAD - RO XNESTEE
IRIEFE 75 M AR &= 5 DI 336 1578 T o 8
ZHEmBRR °

EEBARBHESF ZHEF

B EXATIREESN - REAREMAERE - $HE(E
MEBFRRWER B ZLBIARKE TLEEA]
FEARRRREAEMEABE 2 RDAE
ZFMEG s R - R F INEITEE T Lt
R - ARE - HERARRE AN ERR
BARES = PNSDIRE L RvA RS OIS e 4
B WEB B ZRBIRKF T A REM
Hix ABRERS D AER -

PR
ARBZEELEEBRRABEESBZHE
ABER S RARRE XSG E R AR EENEF
KARERBABEF 2 FF > MEAANKE BN
BER AR -

EEERR

BEEFTA - B £ SR #E §8 Asian Dynamics
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a
high standard of corporate governance. The Board recognizes
that such commitment is essential in upholding the
accountability and transparency and to achieve a balance of
interests between the shareholders, customers, creditors,
employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board will continue to monitor
and revise the Company Code to bring our corporate
governance practices in line with the changes in the
environment and requirements of the Code.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the provisions of the Code, for the year ended 31
December 2011, except:

()  under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing. The Company has set out in written
terms the responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer. At present, Mr. Xie Xuan, the
chairman of the Company, also undertakes the
responsibilities of the chief executive officer until a
replacement for the chief executive officer is found. The
Company considers that under the supervision of its
Board and its Independent Non-executive Directors, a
balancing mechanism exists so that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately and fairly represented.

(i)  under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the code
provision. However, all the Non-executive Directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
annual general meetings pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.

(iiy ~ under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions at the annual general meeting. The
Chairman of the Company, Mr. Xie Xuan, had not
attended the Company’s annual general meeting for
2010 due to other business commitments.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with all
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf
of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the
Directors’ responsibility to create value for the shareholders as
a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company and
the shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated,
diligent and prudent manner on the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of six Directors, with two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman), and Mr.
Qiu Yue; one non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lo Mun
Lam, Raymond (Vice-Chairman), and three independent non-
executive Directors namely Mr. Wu Jixue, Dr. Feng Ke and Mr.
Zhang Daorong.

The Board meets at least four times a year with additional
meetings arranged when necessary, to review the financial
performance, results of each quarter, material investments and
other matters of the Group that require the resolution of the
Board. Simultaneous conference calls may be used to improve
attendance when an individual director cannot attend the
meeting in person.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established. The
current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue, an
independent non-executive Director, and the other member is
Dr. Feng Ke, who is also an independent non-executive
Director, thus all the members of the remuneration committee
are independent non-executive Directors.
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ARG ERMNAI IR EHiR A5 5.48E5.67
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Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should
establish a remuneration committee with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with its authority and duties.
The Company, has established a remuneration committee as
required under the code provision B.1.1.

The role and function of the remuneration committee includes
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and to make recommendations to the board regarding the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the period under review, no meetings of the
remuneration committee were held.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Prior to the establishment of nomination committee by the
Board on 29 March 2012, the Company did not have a
nomination committee.

The Board of directors considers the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship during the year.

During the period, the board of Directors considered and
resolved that all the existing Directors shall be recommended
to be retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association (subject to the proposed
amendments at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
except Mr. Xie Xuan, the Company Chairman, those who have
served the Company for more than three years will retire, and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The nomination committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Under code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Practices, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The existing articles of
association of the Company provide that no Director holding
office as chairman shall be subject to retirement by rotation.
Accordingly, as at the date of this report, Mr. Xie Xuan, being
the chairman of the Company, is not subject to retirement by
rotation.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Daorong, Mr. Wu Jixue and Dr. Feng Ke, and has adopted
terms of reference governing the authorities and duties of the
audit committee. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal controls of the Group. The audit committee has
reviewed the draft of this report and has provided advice and
comments thereon.

The attendance record of each member of the Board during
the year under review is set out below:

A fs S
PEERRE

RIBTRIALA2IGZ AT  BREFERER
T E2LE=F—R- ARAZRARFAEA
ME - HEXTFBBCESTHERERE -
o RARETEAY AR EFEHELE
BABERE -

EREZ8E

ARBCERAIZER EHARRNFES 281 2R
ERUBEREZES  c ERZESHBEYIFN
TEFMAK  BREREREE RESKER
BB - YEFIEEEERZ B SRR LR
B2 BERE BZEEQCIZRAERRER
REBASEZMBRRIET AR - &'
BZEGCENARSR Lt RLZ
mAER -

ROBEFAREZTEREZERHFLHEN
T

Number of meetings
attended/Number
of meetings held
for year ended
31 December 2011
BE_T——=%
+=-A=+—HLEE

Designation and Name BEr RS HESRAE BITEHRRE
Audit
Board Committee
BEEE EREET
Executive Directors BWITESE
Xie Xuan (Chairman) HE (£/%) 9/9 NA/ i
Qiu Yue BB 4/9 NA/ 71
Non-Executive Director BITESE

Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (vice-chairman) & &% (23 /%)

Independent non-executive

directors BIAKEPITES
Wu Jixue IS A
Zhang Daorong FRiEL
Feng Ke SR

9/9 NA/ 5

5/9 3/4
6/9 4/4
3/9 3/4
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the total fee paid/
payable in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Company’s external auditor is set out below:

DG
ARFBHERRAEE BRI
NS BT T 1T 2 (TS B T fE -
BRI TIERE AR BRI EEE
ATFIFE -

BE_ZT——H+t-A=1+—HLEFER &
RNEZ SN B R R B R IE AR RIS T
Bl ez BARENT

2011 2010
—T—%5 —ET—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT

Type of services AR5 TE%E
Audit service EIZ RS 500,000 550,000
Non-audit services IEEBZIRTE — 50,000
500,000 600,000

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements and external auditors’ reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Auditors’ Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Directors have reviewed and are satisfied with their ability
to comply with the policies installed as part of the Group’s
internal control system, including, in particular, financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Furthermore, the Directors are satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions,
and their training programs and budget.

AUDITORS

During the year under review, the performance of the external
auditors of the Group has been reviewed and it is proposed to
reappoint external auditors.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM Listing
Rules and uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the Company.
These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the Company to
raise comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) the
Company replying to the enquires from shareholders timely; (iv)
updated and key information of the Company available on
website of the Company; (v) the Company’s website offering
communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and investors; and (vi) the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong serves the shareholders regarding all
share registration matters.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavour to take
the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the required
practices and standards including the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock
Exchange.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 30
to 119, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 3(c)
to the consolidated financial statements which indicates that
the Group incurred a loss for the year of approximately
HK$17,419,000 during the year ended 31 December 2011
and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately HK$90,349,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 3(c),
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. As explained in Note 3(c), the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon the Group’s ability
to improve the liquidity position to enable the Group to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. The consolidated financial statements do
not include any adjustments that would result from the failure
to operate as a going concern.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Tsang Chiu Keung

Practising Certificate Number P0O4968

20/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road,
Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.A.R., China

29 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EWE R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS FHEEEETR
Note 2011 2010
B3 —T——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFERT FAET
Turnover s 5(a) 6,964 7,133
Cost of services RS A AR (1,377) (1,680)
Gross profit E5 5,687 5,453
Other revenue and net income E s AR A F 5 5(b) 3,249 1,591
Administrative and operating TR EBRY
expenses (54,621) (98,750)
Loss from operations 4R BT IE (45,785) (91,706)
Finance costs B AR 7 (6,735) (2,476)
Loss before taxation BRI ES 18 8 (52,520) (94,182
Income tax expense FriSRiFA 10 10,991 (22,368)
Loss for the year from continuing KEEROHERLER
operations pd 5 (41,529) (116,550)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS & #@assezs
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries &k E 2 7 2 % F 27 24,110 -
Profit for the year from discontinued — AFER B KR IHEEEK
operations i ) 11 = 1,048
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEFIE (17,419) (115,502)
Other comprehensive income: Hih 2 EUE -
Exchange difference arising on BREGINEBRFIEE 2
translation of foreign operations PE 5 =58 2,274 (2,184)
Other comprehensive income AEEEMEEKE
for the year, net of tax (N FiE) 2,274 (2,184)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEEEEIRLEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (15,145) (117,686)
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO: T3 A\ LRE{G#ETF(E548) :
— owners of the Company — ARAHB A 12 846 (67,716)
— non-controlling interests — eI AR RE RS (18,265) (47,7806)
(17,419) (115,502)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
/\\/ N [:] %@H& %

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFE

Note 2011 2010
k=3 —F——5 —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE THANLTEEZEE
INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 4EZE -
— owners of the Company — KREHEB A 3,059 (70,059)
— non-controlling interests — IRt (18,204) (47,627)
(15,145) (117,686)
HK Cents HK Cents
Al Il
Earnings/(loss) per share: gRAEF,(EE) : 14
From continuing and discontinued xR E FEREEB R
operations IHE & %75
— Basic — %$ 0.08 (6.98)
— Diluted — s 0.47 (4.65)
From continuing operations REFERLEER
— Basic — A& (2.17) (7.08)
_ Diluted — g (1.27) (4.72)
From discontinued operations RERILEEER
— Basic —ERXK 2.25 0.11
— Diluted — 8 1.74 0.07

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FEMI 2 MsEBR AR E MR @Rz 2 —#B1H °
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ira MBI &
As at 31 December 2011
R-E——F+-_HA=+—H

Note 2011 2010
M5 —F——% —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 15 1,130 1,112
Development costs B 3% 5k AN 16 - —
Intangible assets B EE 17 40,653 89,470
41,783 90,582
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEMERERR 19 8,121 11,347
Cash and bank balances e MIRITES 20 655 6,504
8,776 17,851
CURRENT LIABILITIES REA&E
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBMRR 21 36,172 74,940
Convertible notes Al AR EiE 22 61,715 -
Tax payable FERTFRIR 1,238 216
99,125 75,156
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FE &R (90,349) (57,305)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HAEERNEAEE
LIABILITIES (48,566) 33,277
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBER
Amount due to a director B —ZEERIE 28 (5,276) (6,033)
Amount due to immediate A RNER 32T YNCIE L]
holding company 28 (21,411) (19,385)
Convertible notes AR =g 22 - (73,541)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 23 (11,973) (24,735)
(38,660) (123,694)
NET LIABILITIES BEF8 (87,226) (90,417)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAREE
Share capital R 24 108,269 98,842
Reserves i) 25 (207,443) (219,472)
Deficit attributable to owners of KRBVER AEILTRE
the Company (99,174) (120,630)
Non-controlling interests FEIERERE RS 11,948 30,213
NET DEFICIT FRFEE (87,226) (90,417)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BER 2 P E BN AR & B3R KR 2 — 881D °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZT——E=A -+ Hh AEEE 1R

on 29 March 2012. FETFIBE o
Xie Xuan Qiu Yue B BB
Director Director FE 2

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RIS %

As at 31 December 2011
RZ-F——F+=_A=+—H

Note 2011 2010
M5 —F——%5 —TE-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG NG 20 18 34,224 34,224
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EH RN 19 46 46
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Nk EMERIRR 21 4,758 5,395
Amount due to subsidiaries FETHT B A | FRIE 18 4,103 2,688
Convertible notes Al RRS EiE 22 61,715 —
(70,576) (8,083)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEEBE (70,530) (8,137)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #AEERZHARE
LIABILITIES (36,306) 26,187
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERFER
Amount due to a director B —REEFIA 28 (46) (210)
Amount due to immediate B E B R RIFUE
holding company 28 (21,897) (19,873)
Convertible notes Al R 25 22 - (73,541)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRTEAE 23 (1,809) (2,367)
(23,752) (95,991)
NET LIABILITIES BiEF8 (60,058) (69,804)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAERGHE
Share capital A% A 24 108,269 98,842
Reserves sk 05 (168,327) (168,646)
NET DEFICIT FFiFE (60,058) (69,804)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BEMt 2 sFBRA NG A B IEHRER 2 — 20D °
consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R-ZE——F=A-t+HhAEEESHERFE

on 29 March 2012. PETIEE o
Xie Xuan Qiu Yue Bl B
Director Director EF E-

TSMEE (R BRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

PEAN *F)’\,%Z,%

N

R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATHER AR
Issued Convertible Non-
share Share Capital Translation notes Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
TRRER
E¥The ROEE EXRE ERRE i RER NGt ERIER @it
HKF000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HK$000  HK§000
TEL TET TEL TAL TAL TEL TAL AL TEL
Asat 1 January 2010 RZE-TF-F-H 9,342 119,693 26,020 (1,119 - (310359  (69417) 77,840 8,423
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - b7 7716 (47,786) (115,502
Exchange difference BEBNERMEE
arising on translation LEREE
of foreign operations - - - (2,343 - - (2,343 159 (2,184)
Total comprehensive income  AEE 2 EMAEE
for the year - - - (2,343) - EI716) (0059 {78 (117,686)
Issue of shares by exercise ~ R{TERRIEME T
of share options ffn 2,500 4,375 - - - - 6,875 - 6,875
Costs on issue of shares BORAH2HA - ] - - - - G] - @)
Issue of convertible notes BTRREEAS A
for settlement of balance WEMBAAER
of consideration for RESE
acaquisition of interests
in a subsidiary - - - - 14,346 - 14,346 - 14,346
Deferred tax liabilties RREE BT
on convertible notes WEEE - - - - (2,367) - (2,367) - (2,367)
At 31 December 2010 R-%-%%
and at 1 January 2011 +ZR=+-B%k
~%-—-%-B-H 98,842 124,060 26,020 (3,456) 11979 (378,075  (120,630) 30,213 (90,417)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited




—T— R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R S E

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHBAEL
Issued Convertible Non-
share Share Capital Translation notes Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total

TRERRE
ERfhe BHER &IEE ELGRE fafs  R:BHE Nt FERER Eh)
HKB000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKEO000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TET TR TRn  TEr  TER  TEr  TER  TAT  TER

At31December2010and  R-E-T4
at 1 January 2011 TZA=T-BR
“5-—£-f-H 98,842 124,060 26,020 (3456 11,979 (378075  (120630) 30213 (90417

ProfitiLoss) for the year TERET/ (BB - - - - - 846 846 (18265)  (17.419)
Exchange difference BERNERAMEE

arising on translation LERER

of foreign operations - - - 2,274 - . 2,274 - 2,274

Total comprehensive income  AEE 2 EMELE
for the year - - - 2,274 - 846 3,120 (18,269) (15,145)

Issue of shares by exercise of ~ R1TEEREMEIT
N

Share options it 100 175 - - - - 275 - 275
Costs on issue of shares BIRG 2MA - (34) - - - - (34) - (34)
Conversion of convertiole notes 3 2 TR Z1E 9,327 11,589 - - (3379) - 17,537 - 17,537
Deferred tax liabilties on MAREEZET

convertible notes WEaE - - - - 558 - 558 - 558
At 31 December 2011 RZg—-%

+ZA=+-H 108,269 135,790 26,020 (1,182 9158  (377,229) (99,174) 11,948 (87,226)

MR (2R BRAF 35
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN AN =g —1

,Z\\/T\ = Iﬁﬁ//lbii.%

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE—_FE——F+_A=+—HIFE

Note 2011 2010
P& —B——% —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM CELBRELZHESRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation from REFBLCEER 2
continuing operations B BRI E 1B (52,520) (94,182)
Profit before taxation from REKRIHEEEBE 2
discontinued operations BR A A% 24,110 1,048
(28,410) (93,134)
Adjustments for: AT EIEAE
Interest income FEWA ) )
Other interest paid Hih B AFIE 6,735 2,476
Depreciation of property, Y- BEREREZ
plant and equipment e 613 540
Amortisation of intangible assets A 18,836 30,420
Net gain on deregistration of FEBRAM B AR 2
subsidiaries i A FEE (23,929) —
Impairment of other receivables HAab U AR ZBE 10 1,280
Impairment of other receivables H At EUBR 2 R (B H B
written back - (980)
Impairment of intangible assets mAERE 29,981 55,023
Other payables written back H e BR ZR B (3,205) (1,003)
Impairment of trade receivables E 5 EWAR T 2 B
written back - (1,410
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - BEX
plant and equipment R R 1 59
Operating profit/(loss) before EEEBREHAT 2L
changes in working capital wmFL(E518) 629 (6,732)
Increase in trade and other B 5 K Fo A e AR SR8 0
receivables (8,403) (432)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 I b & 1< BE 212 i 2,546 5,364
Cash used in operations CEEEFTARS (5,228) (1,800)
Tax paid EfNHIE - (10)
Net cash used in operating activities 4% & % 7% 2 IR £ %58 (5,228) (1,810)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meEReERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011

BE—F——F+-A=+—HIFE
Note 2011 2010
ihp=2 —F——% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING & EFHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest income LB A 3 3
Purchase of property, BEYE  BELRE
plant and equipment (3) (153)
Net cash used in investing activities & /ZSFAAZE &R FEE - (150)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING S EEIZ2IRERE
ACTIVITIES
Payment to a director JERTEEFHIA (757) (569)
Advance from immediate BHEERARRR
holding company 2,026 3,466
Proceeds from issue of shares Iﬁ@%ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ% 7
by exercise of share options Fr8 3 275 6,867
Issuing expenses on conversion ?ﬁﬂﬁﬂ B AR %
of convertible notes ZETHRX (34) —
Interest paid FEXH (1,024) (939)
Net cash generated from financing  BE/EEEL 2 F5
activities 486 8,825
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE RERFALZED(RL)
IN CASH AND CASH WEhniEEE
EQUIVALENTS (4,742) 6,865
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REVIZIRE RIS ZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,504 1,863
Effects of foreign exchange rate A|NEE [ifE SR S & 2
changes (1,107) (2,224)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MREFXRZIRERFELSEEHY
AT END OF THE YEAR 20 655 6,504

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BEFS 2 Mt i B AN AR S

BiisRaR 2 —801n °

TSMEE (R BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR BT R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are investment
holdings, provision of online content information and
related technical services, business consultation services
and internet protocol television services.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company is Glamour House Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

HKFRS 1 Amendment ~ Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for
First-time Adopters

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 Amendment ~ Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation
— Classification of Rights Issues

HK(FRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in May 2010

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has no material effect on the financial
statements of the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods.

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related
party. As a result, the group has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and concluded that the
revised definition does not have any material impact on
the Group’s related party disclosures in the current and
previous period. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces
modified disclosure requirements for government-related
entities. This does not impact the Group because the
Group is not a government-related entity.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR BT R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Cont’d)

FER#ET R EE] B EUBRE
EA([FEMBREEN]D (E)

The Group has not early applied the following new and NEFBNANBERELEIZEERBUT
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that EEHBEMRER T KRBT E
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these Al BT RE -

financial statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time BEMERELER B HETEREED
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial F1RUEFTA) FIREERAER

Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters'

P EEN — &
HBREIIGRER
RnEZBERR

HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial EBBHERED (BB BT ERE LR
Instruments: Disclosures EVEACHEY) FIRMBKEIA
— Transfers of Financial Assets! B EENKRER
HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial BB HREEL B EAMEREER
Instruments: Disclosures ENEACHEN) FIHEBMKIA %
— Offsetting Financial Assets and B—HENBEE
Financial Liabilities* LB EEE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BB HELER BT AS
E95R
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements* BEMEREEL GARBRE
E105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements* EEMERE LR BETH
F115
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other EAY B LR BEREMEE Y
Entities* E125% e
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement* ERGEREED QAFEFS
135
HKAS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation EB AL (BB B @ &8
of Financial Statements 15 (BFTR) F1REFTBERE
— Presentation of ltems of Other — EREMEE
Comprehensive Income? WATEE S
HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income BB AR BETEBeERE 12

Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets?

F125R(BFTA)

SRR — BT
IR EIEEREE?

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits* EESTENE19 BIFEFH
F(ZT—F)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements* BEGITERE 27 BIYMBHRK
F(ZT——F)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint ERCERF 28 RBERARALQT
Ventures? F(ZE——F)  Z|AE*
HKAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial EBesTEE| CHES R EEXRY)
Instruments: Presentation FRHFRUBFIA)  HHBILE: 23§
— Offsetting Financial Assets and — EHMBEER
Financial Liabilities® BKa’Es
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production 5 (BRMBSRE BEREEEREZ
Phase of a Surface Mine* REZEE)— SRR AR 4
REF205%
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July, 1 R-_E——F+A—HI 2 RHBRFE
2011 . o R R A 3K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R-E——F—H—HIZRHERFE
January, 2012 BRI AE K
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July, 3 R-IE——F+A—HIZRFERFE
2012 . o Al
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 4 R-IE—=F—H—HalZRHBRFE

January, 2013

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January, 2014

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January, 2015

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts
of HKAS 39 that relate to the classification and
measurement of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement
categories: those measured as at fair value and those
measured at amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.
For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the
HKAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in
cases where the fair value option taken for financial
liabilities, the part of fair value change due to an entity’s
own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement, unless this
creates an accounting mismatch. The Group is yet to
assess HKFRS9’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 9 upon its effective date, which is for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as
the determining factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial statements of
the parent company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess. The Group is yet to assess
HKFRS 10’s full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 10
no later than the accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2013.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

FER#ET R EE] B EUBRE
EA([FEMBREEN]D (E)
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R -BEVBHREENFEIFN_-F
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PSR EERIF 95 ©

FRMBRMEERE 105 (46 M5 H
RINHBRABER - #E M=
ZHREREEERESSHASRALZ
RAEMBRR ZEE - ZERHEIN
Hal ERAEZBER T M EEE
HIHE o NEE R A EEE RE
BER-_ZT—=F—-A Rk z®&MAiKz
SETHERR BB BREEFE 105 -

TSMEE (R BRAF

41



42

Annual Report 2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR BT R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the
use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on
how it should be applied where its use is already required
or permitted by other standards within HKFRSs. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 13’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 13 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be expected to have
a material impact on the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the GEM Listing Rules and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention
except that certain financial instruments and
intangible assets, which have been measured at
fair value, as explained in the accounting policies
set out in note 3.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Going concern

The Group had incurred a loss for the year of
approximately HK$17,419,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2011 and net current liabilities
of approximately HK$90,349,000 as at 31
December 2011. The directors of the Company
endeavor to improve the Group’s liquidity position
and had taken measures to reduce overheads and
costs to strengthen its cash flow position.
Furthermore, the directors of the Company are
currently exploring various options, which include
the issue of new shares, in order to provide
additional equity funding to the Group. In addition,
the immediate holding company and majority of
loan providers have agreed to provide continuing
financial support for the Group to meet its liabilities
as they fall due and the directors consider the new
business operation acquired previously would
generate sufficient working capital to support the
Group’s operations.

Provided that the above measures can successfully
improve the liquidity position of the Group, the
directors of the Company are satisfied that the
Group will be able to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on the going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable to
operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify
non-current assets and liabilities as current
liabilities. The effect of these adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including special purpose entities)
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance
(effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

3.

EXE

(d)

stBUR (4
GAmBER (2)

PG PO oK 6 2 B B 2 R3S
RIS Ty AR R R E
2 ER B AGRA 2 EREER -
o R o BE R B 1 A 2
HIR AR« AR AR ARE
B DR B AR R E
WEseE(E - —TF— A8
AR o

WEFRE  MEBARZHBHRERE
EEEHE  USHSFHEER
SEEMKBARRAZEHEE
iﬁ °

PIBEREARS - &F WA KR
XN A BR B B 2 BUMEH -

FRERBEAEMBAGSZHTERE
w28
AEBERMBARHEEEDR CE
BT EBHAKERENE QR
ZIEHIHE - AR BERER S
RERE 2 ek KSR MR R 2 BR
EERETRE  URBERHEL
AR S 2 B8 o FRIEH RS
ZHABSHREENHERRERF
B2 ZRERNEDRER  WHE
RARBFEAA e



—T— R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Cont’d)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii)
derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognizes the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the
aggregate of the consolidation transferred and the
fair value of non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

()

Goodwill (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of
the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the services
provided in the course of the ordinary activities, net
of discounts and sales related taxes. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follow:

(i) Income from the provision of project
consultancy services, internet solution
services and content services is recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
contracts and when the underlying services
are rendered;

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(i) Income from the provision of internet protocol
television services is recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying
subscription agreement and when the
underlying services are rendered;

@iy Income from advertising services is
recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying contract and when the
underlying services are rendered; and

(iv) Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis that
takes into account the effective yield on the
assets.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such as deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(9)

(h)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognized in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the deferred tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

(i

Borrowing costs (Cont’d)

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

20% — 33% or over
the remaining lease
terms, whichever is
shorter

20% — 50%

20% — 33%

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and fixtures

Computer and
equipment

Motor vehicles . 33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i

)]

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit
or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

() Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is
recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the
product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.
Other development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of exclusive
right of usage of Broadcast of Audio-Video
Program On Web Permit is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost
of it over its estimated useful lives of eight
years.

Period and method of amortization are
reviewed annually.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generat ing uni ts, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. If the
recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets
The financial assets of the Group are
classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

0]

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment, except where the receivables
are interest-free loans without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

()

0]

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset, such
as trade receivables, are assessed for
impairment on an individual basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass the
credit period, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for similar
financial assets. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods. (See the
accounting policy below)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

0]

(ii)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by the Group are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

()

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would not be material, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the
liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion
option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to share premium. Where
the conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible bonds,
the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes (Cont’d)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible bonds are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the lives of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is
recognized in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized
in profit or loss.

(m) Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that

person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of

the Group.

or

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(m) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b) The party is an entity where the following
conditions applies:

(n)

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are the
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of another entity (or of an
parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
another entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
party and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

a person is identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is
a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of the parent
of the entity).

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(0)

(P)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits
Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(i) Retirement benefits schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of central pension
schemes operated by the local governments
in the PRC and these subsidiaries make
mandatory contributions to these central
pension schemes to fund the employees’
retirement benefits. The retirement
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries
are based on certain percentages of the
employees’ salaries cost in accordance with
the relevant regulations in the PRC, and are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. The
Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits upon payment of the
retirement contributions to the central pension
schemes operated by the local governments
in the PRC.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(p) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Retirement benefits schemes (Cont’d)

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

Share-based payments

The fair value of the share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share-based payment reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(iii) Share-based payments (Cont’d)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is included
in profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or to
provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(q)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognized in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognized
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognized directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are included in the translation reserve
as a separate component of equity. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the rate
of prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are included in the
translation reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(r) Financial guarantees, provision and contingent
liabilities

0]

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where
no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 3(l) if and when (a) it
becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (b) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, i.e. the
amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(r) Financial guarantees, provision and contingent
liabilities (Cont’d)

(i)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in
business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a
business combination are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with note
3(l). Contingent liabilities acquired in a
business combination that cannot be reliably
fair valued are disclosed in accordance with
note 3(l).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Present obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability where it is not probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliably. Possible obligations that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as a contingent liability
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-F——F+-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

(t)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if early. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the
income statement, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management has made
the following judgments that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Valuation of intangible assets and useful-life
The Group has made estimations and assumptions
in relation to the potential future cash flows of
identifiable intangible assets acquired as part of
business combinations. This assessment involves
estimations and assumptions relating to potential
future revenues, appropriate discount rates and the
useful life of such assets. These estimations and
assumptions impact the income statement over the
useful life of the intangible asset.

Impairment test of intangible assets

The Group determines whether intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units. The value in use
calculation requires management to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account of their estimated
residual value. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values involve management’s
estimation. The Group assesses annually the
residual value and the useful life of the property,
plant and equipment and if the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year when the
estimate is changed and the future period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

5. REVENUE

5. Wi
(@ An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is (a) AEEFALETOTUOT :
as follows:
2011 2010
—F——5F —T-EF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Internet protocol television HHRER
service income AR 75 U A 1,204 7,133
Advertising service income & & BRFS U 5,515 -
Consultancy service income A RIS UA 245 —
6,964 7,133
(o) An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net (b) AEEFANEMBERIWAFES
income for the year is as follows: L UNNE
2011 2010
—ET——% —E—E=F
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FET FET
Other income H Al as 41 2
Other payables written back H b FE AT BR SR A 12 3,205 607
Impairment of other receivables H At FEUER SR 2 BE
written back o - 980
Interest income FESA 3 2
3,249 1,591

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is the type of
services rendered by the Group’s operating division for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

The Group is currently organized into two major business
divisions:

(

) content solution and business consultation
services; and

(i) internet protocol television services.

These business divisions are classified as continuing
operations. Discontinued operations relating to logistics
service division discontinued in last year are disclosed for
comparison purposes.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and resources between segments, the group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
in the year (2010: Nil).

Segment result represents the loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of corporate income and
expense, central administration cost, directors’ salaries,
interest income, gain on disposal of investment in
subsidiaries, gain/loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, amortization of intangible assets, impairment
of (i) trade and other receivables, (i) amount due from
related companies and (i) intangible assets, finance
costs, impairment of trade and other receivables written
back and income tax expense.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results

(@)

6. HEREH(H)
(a) SFEBUIER R S

2011
g5
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RECEER RIEEEER
Content
solution and
business
consultation Internet
services protocol
MBHE  television
BABFRE  semices Logistics
REH R Total  services Group
HiElkE  ERRE & WiRRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TER
Segments revente Dk 245 6,719 6,064 - 6,064
Segments results PEEE (513) 3,807 3,204 24,110 27,404
Interest income FEHA 3
Unallocated corporate income RABDARA 4
Unallocated corporate expenses AARLARR (3,319)
Other payable written back EthERGTED 3,205
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries RRERmELAR
BB (181)
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BERRE
plant and equipment BB (1)
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEH (18,836)
Impairment of other receivables EtEUES 2R E (10)
Impairment of intangible assets BREERE (29,981)
Finance costs BARKA (6,735)
Income tax expense FERAR 10,991
Loss for the year TEEFB (17,419)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results (Cont’d)

(@)

iR e SRR I a
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HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

6. HEREH(H)
(a) SYEBUTES R 448 (4

2010
_Z-%f
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BEOEEE BIHETERR
Content
solution and Internet
business protacol
consultation television Logistics
services services Total services Group
KA HRE
LS
REH BB
FARE  ERRE @ mikE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL Tan TAn TAn AL
Segments revenue DAk G - 7,133 7,183 - 7,133
Segments results AHEE - 574 574 (288) 286
Interest income FEMA 3
Unallocated corporate income RAELAMA 2
Unallocated corparate expenses AARAFEY (7,560)
Other payable written back Hf RS 1,008
Impairment of trade receivables written back & 5 UG 2 2 HERE 1410
Impairment of other receivables written back £ 4 fE 4TS 20 2 AT 980
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BREREREL
plant and equipment BB (69)
Amortisation of intangible assets BWEERH (30,420)
Impairment of other receivables EEUESZRE (1,280)
Impairment of intangible assets BREERE (65,02)
Finance costs BEKA 2,476)
Income tax expense FERAY (22,368)
Loss for the year TEEEB (115,502)
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. NEEEE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) HPEERERE
2011
“F--F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RREEEH RIETEEH
Content
solution and
business
consultation Internet

services protocol
MBHE  television
BAFE  senvices Logistics
REH R Total  services Group
HiElkE  ERRE & WiRRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn T TR FET FET

Segment assets PHEE 3,383 46,971 50,354 = 50,354
Unallocated assets FOWEE 205
Consolidated assefs RAEE 50,559
Segment iabiltes ABEE (10088 (765 (48643 - e
Unallocated liabilties APERE (89,142)
Consolidated liabilties HRBE (137,785)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. NEEEE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) (b) PBEEREEE)
2010
i
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FELEER w37
Content
solution and
husiness
consultation Internet
services protocol
NARE  television
IS senvices Logistics
7S A Total senvices Group

aEEB  EEEE s ORER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL AT TER  TEL  TaR

Segment assets HHEE - 100976 100,976 247 101223
Unallocated assets FOWEE 7,209
Consolidated assets RREE 108,432
Segment liabilties AHEE (64) (57,038) (57,102) (27,388) (84,490)
Unallocated liabilties ANEEE (114,360)
Consolidated liabilties HRBE (198,850)
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. NEEEE)
(c) Other segment information (c) HihsrEpEH
2011
—B——f
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
FHEEEER RS
Content
solution
and business
consultation Internet
services protocol
M HLRE television
BRAE services Logistics
RER HEHA services
AR ERRB Wik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TFHERT TFHET
Capital expenditure EVN=ET - 591 -
Depreciation of property, ME - BB RERE
plant and equipment JITE 10 600 -
Amortisation of intangible BREESE
assets — 18,836 —
Impairment of intangible assets EREEZRE - 29,981 -
Impairment of other receivables H A IR K 2 R (B 10 - -
Other payables written back HipfETIRFEE (498) (2,447) -
Income tax expenses FTis R = 1,213 =

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Other segment information (Cont’d)

(c)

iR e SRR I a
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HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

TEREH ()
(c) HEfbsEmEs(a)

2010
—E-TF
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
HRSEEE RIS EE%
Content
solution
and business
consultation Internet
services protocol
A television
BRAT R services Logistics
NEB ER: services
RS BRRE W AR 7%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FHAT FHAT THT
Capital expenditure BEARX - 153 -
Depreciation of property, ME - BB RERE
plant and equipment ZITE — 498 —
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEHY - 30,420 —
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE - 55,023 —
Impairment of other receivables Hih R 2 RE — — 470
Impairment of trade receivables “”% EUWBR R~
written back EEE — - (1,410)
Impairment of other receivables HAh AR TR
written back BE R E - (980) -
Other payables written back H it B F R ZR ] - — (396)
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(d) Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the

PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by

SEER (2)

(d)

Hh 33 & #L

AREBZEHEBMRPE -

AEERW A ES D 2 HMNBEF W

geographical location are detailed below: FEIBIT ¢

2011 2010
—T——F —T-EF
HK$’000 HIK$'000
T FAT

Continuing operations RELEER
PRC s 6,964 7,133

Discontinued operations RS TS
PRC th _ _

Non-current assets are mainly located in the PRC.

(e) Information about major customers
Included in revenues from external customers of
HK$6,964,000 (2010: HK$7,133,000) are revenues
of HK$5,515,000 (2010: HK$3,102,000) which
arose from services rendered to the Group’s largest
customer under the internet protocol television

services segment.

FRBEETEMNTE -

(e)

FREEEFRZER

HNERE P UL ES 6,964,000 T (==
— T 4 :7,133,000/8 7T ) B &
5,515,000/ (= T — T F:
3,102,000 7L) 2 W - BEkE=
RETEEBPEERRE DI T AR
EBZEABEFREZ RS -

7. FINANCE COSTS S =% S
2011 2010
—E——f —ZT—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#IT FET
Other interest H b F 8 1,024 939
Imputed interest expense of ARRERCHE
convertible notes FEMAX 5,711 1,537
6,735 2,476

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING 8. KBEIBEEE2ERZKBHaEE
OPERATIONS

The Group’s loss before taxation from continuing
operations is arrived at after charging:

AR R S A SRS 2 B A 1
TYE TH TR G

2011 2010
ot —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#IT FHBT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIAAR(TEE
remuneration) EEE A
— Wages, salaries and other benefits — T& - 4 K E#MET] 1,683 1,739
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIRE A B
contributions 304 297
Auditors’ remuneration ZEA S
— current year — RFE 500 550
— other service fee — Hi RS E - 50
Depreciation of property, Yz - B NEE
plant and equipment ZIE 613 540
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 18,836 30,420
Impairment of other receivables H th R BR SR 2 BB 10 810
Impairment of intangible assets BIVEEZRE 29,981 55,023
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMERE
plant and equipment ki 1 59
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries &M B A E 2 Eia
(Note 27) (M7%27) 181 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of i R E ZRETEA
land and buildings s 219 335
Legal and professional fees ERREEER 545 3,291
Net foreign exchange loss bE H E518 558 4 11

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EENEESIIN
REMUNERATION
(@) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEHN
The details of emoluments of each Director are sEEHEeFHBSHOT -
shown below:
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—"F——F+=-H=+—H
ILEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits contributions
Fees  ¥i& 285 BHKER Total
Name of Director Bz e REMHH HEIHER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FTERT FTERT FTHERT
Executive directors: HITEE:
Xie Xuan Bl 540 - - 540
Yang Qiulin (Note 1) PR (PR EE1) = - - -
Qiu Yue i - - - -
Non-executive directors: EHITEE :
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond BB 24 - - 24
Chandler Andrew James Chandler Andrew
(Note 2) James (BizE2) 543 - 11 554
Independent non-executive  BILFEH T
directors: BEE:
Wu Jixue R 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong RiBE 48 - - 48
Feng Ke SR 18 - - 18
1,203 - 11 1,214
Note 1: Resigned on 18 March 2011 a1 R ——F=A+N\RBET

Note 2: Resigned on 23 November 2011

78 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(@) Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 December 2010

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

9. EEREEHME)
(a) ESHM(E)

BE-_FT-FHFE+-HA=+—H

IEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees  %ig 38 BRER Total
Name of Director EEMY we kAR RELESA it
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT FET FHEL
Executive directors: HITESE:
Xie Xuan HiE 1,080 — — 1,080
Yang Qiulin 1R - - - -
Qiu Yue [isifians — — — —
Non-executive directors: EHITESE :
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond EHR 24 - - 24
Chandler Andrew James Chandler Andrew
James 540 — 12 552
Independent non-executive HIIFEHIT
directors: BE:
Wu Jixue Mg Ea 30 — — 30
Zhang Daorong RIBE 48 — — 48
Feng Ke IR R 18 - - 18
1,740 — 12 1,752

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two (2010: two) directors whose
remuneration are set out in directors’ remuneration
in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three (2010: three) non-director

employees are as follows:

ESREEHM(E)

(b) AfiREHES
FR - AUk FHEETEEML
(Z2-ZFF - MLESF- /\iﬁ@ﬂ
BHIMNEX@QFBFFHFH 8- B
B (T —FF ) FEF
BEZFHMFBLT

2011 2010
—F——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and e UK
other benefits HEMFz 623 614
Retirement benefits scheme RIKEFIETE
contributions T 59 56
682 670

Their emoluments fell within the following band:

BEZMENFATHE :

Number of highest
paid individuals

BEiEEAE
2011 2010
—F——% —T—FF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 77T 3 3

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO 10. FiBE % (BRI EEZLR)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) NEE2EKERZHIES:
comprehensive income represents:

2011 2010
ot —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHERT FAET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEAR{IE — & & F1EH
Charge for the year REERZ - -
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BUEATRIE — P B2
Income Tax PS5
Charge for the year REERZ 1,213 —
Deferred tax (Note 23) EERE (5E23) (12,204) 22,368
Tax (credit)/charge i (ER),  Hx (10,991) 22,368
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of BEENSHIRFRNGLGTERE AT 2
16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable 16.5% (ZZF—FF 1 16.5%)5TH °
profits for the year.
PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise FE B AR B 2% (2 —FF
Tax at the rate of 25% (2010: 25%). Taxation 25%) 2B EE R REF - k8
arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the HEfhalAgR s MIEREBREER

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. BITHEREE -

TSMEE (R BRAF

81



82

Annual Report 2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO 10.

B> (FARFEEEER)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS) (Cont’d) (&)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense (b) FEHEXHESZE2TEWZERTH
and accounting loss per the consolidated BRERABETEZE T BEREZEHR
statement of comprehensive income at mnF
applicable tax rates is as follows:

2011 2010
—F——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET
Loss before taxation R AT S 18 (52,520) (94,182)
Notional tax on loss before tax, LA R AR 2
calculated at the rates applicable A2 AR
to profits in the jurisdictions BREBAIEBETE
concerned HEVIE (10,484) (20,383)
Income not subject to tax BHEHH WA (612) 916)
Expenses not deductible for TR 2
tax purposes 12,204 21,5637
Unrecognised tax losses RERBIIBBE 248 167
Utilisation of previous recognised AR 2 MHRTIE
tax losses &8 (143) (409)
Deferred tax on intangible assets ELEE 2 FEERIE
(Note 23) (FfF3E23) (12,204) 22,368
Income tax expense for the year FRZFABREX (10,991) 22,368
(c) Income tax recognised directly in equity (c) EENEREIRZMEH
2011 2010
—ET——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHIT
Deferred tax IRIERIE
Arising on transactions with owners:  Ei#EB AN ETTR S FTESE ¢
Initial recognition of the equity NESRERABREE 2
component of convertible notes ez R (558) 2,367
(558) 2,367

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

11, RIEEE 2T

In last year, the Group ceased its logistics services REE  REBKRIEYRREDE > %
segment operations. The cessation was consistent with EBIE - RIFBEAD S 2 (K BIEFS
the Group’s strategies to focus its resources in the REB R  FAREBEAEFRRNE

internet protocol television business.

RESBBEEREBL -

Accordingly, the operations of logistics services were At KRATERBE B EREAES
classified as discontinued operations in accordance with FE5 [BFIEHEZIERBEERKIER
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sales and ek | YR RIS E R D AR R
Discontinued Operations. The results of the discontinued MR o H A AS T HEINEGE R 2RI
operations included in the consolidated statement of TR BRI

comprehensive income are as follows:

2011 2010
—T——F —T2F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHBT
Profit for the year from AEERBZIEEERS
discontinued operations ZitaFl
Turnover S - -
Cost of sales SHE R = -
Gross profit E A - -
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries R s E A T 2% 7
(Note 27) (Fff17E27) 24,110 —
Other revenue and net income HAb Uzt MR A EEE = 1,970
Administrative and operating expenses 1T R & ER Y = (922)
Profit before taxation B B A 24,110 1,048
Income tax expense FriS i - —
Profit for the year from REEREKL LS ETS
discontinued operations -yl 24,110 1,048

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 11, RIEEZBER (&)
The profit before taxation from discontinued operations AR RS SRS 2 B BB R 4840
is arrived at after charging: BTAISERZED -
2011 2010
—F——% —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIXA(TREEEEHH)
remuneration)
— Wages, salaries and other benefits — T& - &4 R EAER = 105
— Retirement benefits scheme — R SRR
contributions = 40
Impairment of other receivables H R BR SR 2 BB - 470
Operating lease rentals in respect of i REE RETEA
land and buildings e - 95
Legal and professional fees FEENEXER - 1
Cash flows from discontinued operations REZRLEEEEBZRERE
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Net cash used in operating activities MEEEAZIRE R - (1,163)
Net cash generated from investing RERBBZIREFEE
activities = 48
Net cash used in financing activities MEERSMBZEEFE - (49)
Effects of foreign exchange rate [EREH) &
changes = 42
Net decrease in cash or Re KR FEWR D
cash equivalents ek = (1,122)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFE

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12, AASIHEA AEILESIE
COMPANY
2011 2010
—T——%5 —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Amount of consolidated loss attributable 7722 581 7 ¥ 2% 7 gL I8
to owners of the Company dealt with ZARA R R AELIRE
in the Company’s financial statements B8 (8,547) (7,859)
Impairment loss on amount due FEUS BB A R FRIE 2R E
from subsidiaries 518 (750) (109,852)
Impairment loss on amount due FE U B A R SRIE 2 R A
from subsidiaries written back 518 E 4% 707 —
Company’s loss for the year KABZ EREE (8,590) (117,711)
The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the BHE-_ZE——F+-A=1+—HILHF
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 B ARREBABEGREBEERES
includes a loss of approximately HK$8,547,000 (2010: 1B #8,547,000% T( = T — T F:
HK$7,859,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 7,859,000 7T) B 5 AR R R 2 B 75 ¥R
statements of the Company. E
DIVIDEND 13. &2
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETEZEREE=ZE——F+=A
dividends for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: =T —HLEFEREAMARKRE (ZF—F
Nil). FE) o

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (a)
Continuing operations
The calculations of the basic loss per share are

14. BREHN (EH8)

BREXEN, (EH8)

IFBEEET

FRENEEIRIEA T EBIRET

based on the following data: HE
2011 2010
—F——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
Loss for the year attributable RAREE ANERAFE
to the owners of the Company B8 (23,264) (68,764)
2011 2010
—F——F —_T—FF
Weighted average number @R ETESEE
of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January W—HA— B2 #{TEmKR 988,417,986 963,417,986
Effect of exercise of share options TEEREE 523,288 7,183,562
Effect of conversion of R AR E g7
convertible notes 80,800,192 —
Weighted average number R+=—A=+—H
of ordinary shares at 31 December 7 @A NHEFHEE 1,069,741,466 970,601,548

Discontinued operations
The calculations of the basic earnings per share are

AILEEE TS

FREARBFTIREA TN BUIRETT

based on the following data: FTE
2011 2010
—T——%F —T-EF
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FER FAT
Profit for the year attributable KAREE ANEIHARFEE
to the owners of the Company v ) 24,110 1,048

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Cont’d)

14. BREF (&BE) (&)

(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share (Cont’d) (a) SBREXRERN (EE)(E)
Discontinued operations (Cont’d) BT AR (1)
2011 2010
—g——§ ~—T-%%
Weighted average number TiERIEFEHEE
of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January MR—HA—HBHBEZ1TEHER 988,417,986 963,417,986
Effect of exercise of share options TEBRRE S E 523,288 7,183,562
Effect of conversion of SRR g v
convertible notes 80,800,192 —

Weighted average number R+-—_A=1+—H
of ordinary shares at 31 December 2 Z@AxIEFHEE  1,069,741,466 970,601,548
Continuing and discontinued operations HFERBILEERE
The calculations of the basic earnings/(loss) per FREARN,(BR) IREAT
share are based on the following data: BURETTAE -
2011 2010
—T——F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable  ZNQ F1#E A A &L
to the owners of the Company REERN(EE) 846 (67,716)
2011 2010
—T——5 —E-TF
Weighted average number 38 AR EFEHEE
of ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA—HBHBEZ1TEHER 988,417,986 963,417,986
Effect of exercise of share options TEEIRE S E 523,288 7,183,562
Effect of conversion of convertible — H#ar[# G Z g > 522
notes 80,800,192 —
Weighted average number RNt+—A=+—H
of ordinary shares at 31 December 7 @AM FIHEE 1,069,741,466 970,601,548

TSMEE (R BRAF
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HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Cont’d)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Continuing operations

The calculations of the diluted earnings/(loss) per

share are based on the following data:

14. BREF (&BE) (&)
(b)

SRBERF(E5H)
BT E T

SREFRN, (BE) RIA TR
ity

2011 2010
—F——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
Loss for the year attributable to KAREB NEIEREE
owners of the company B8 (23,264) (68,764)
After tax effect of effective interest ~ TA[#HRREHE A E W N B
on the liability component of FEZBREEE
convertible notes 5,711 1,537
Loss for the year attributable to RABEE ANERARFE
owners of the company (diluted) B8 (HE) (17,553) (67,227)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares fiF RIS H
2011 2010
—F——5F —_T—EF

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares at 31 December
Effect of exercise of share options

Effect of conversion of
Convertible notes

Rt -A=+—B&EK

il RSk 4=
TEERR TS
SRR e S a2

1,069,741,466 970,601,548
9,425,713 56,147,556
302,830,911 396,100,913

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares (diluted) at

31 December

Nt+—A=+—HZ
TR NEFIEE
(#%)

1,381,998,090 1,422,850,017

Discontinued operations

The calculations of the diluted earnings per share

are based on the following data:

BILEEEETS

SREERNTIREA T BIRETT
B!

2011 2010
—F——% —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHET
Profit for the year attributable to ViN/NETE ¥ = DN Y el
owners of the company ARE 5 F 24,110 1,048

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR B R M et

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFE

14. BREH (§58) (&)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Cont’d) (b) SBREIRAN(&E)(E)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FRIEATE L (/)
2011 2010
—B——% —E-TF
Weighted average number TR N T2
of ordinary shares at 31 December W+Z—A=+—H 1,069,741,466 970,601,548
Effect of exercise of share options TmATINFEF B 9,425,713 56,147,556
Effect of conversion of IR E R
convertible notes 302,830,911 396,100,913
Weighted average number HMABMBRERRE 28

of ordinary shares (diluted)
at 31 December

1,381,998,090

1,422,850,017

Continuing and discontinued operations
The calculations of the diluted earnings/(loss) per

FERKILEEET
FhEE(BER) VREBIA T 8IS

share are based on the following data: =
2011 2010
—T——F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET BT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable A F1#EH AJE(EAFE
to owners of the company [E518 846 (67,716)
After tax effect of effective interest AR RE 8 G B
on the liability component of FEZBREETZE
convertible notes 5,711 1,537
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable  ZNA BB AFEIHAREE
to owners of the company (diluted) /518 (#5%) 6,557 (66,179)
2011 2010
—F——F —_ET—TF
Weighted average number of W+—A=+—8
ordinary shares at 31 December ZE@EIRINEFHEE 1,069,741,466 970,601,548
Effect of exercise of share options TEERE & 9,425,713 56,147,556
Effect of conversion of R ERE 2 &
convertible notes 302,830,911 396,100,913
Weighted average number of R+=—A=+—H

ordinary shares (diluted) 2T EE

at 31 December (#58)

1,381,998,090

1,422,850,017
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BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - BERRE
Computer
Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
improvement and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total

HENERE RERRE ZRRRE RE it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TERn TERn Fén TR

Cost; )M :
At1 January 2010 \-E-2E-f-0 292 646 4,112 537 5,587
Additions NE - 5 148 - 153
Disposal e (164) - (311) - 475)
Exchange difference ERES 29 41 152 100 322
At 31 December 2010 and at RZE-ZF+-A=1—H
1 January 2011 LkZE——F-F-H 157 692 4,101 637 5,587
Addtions hE - - 594 - 504
Disposal e (145) (167) (1529) (476) (2,311)
Exchange difference ERES - 17 107 8 132
As at 31 December 2011 RZE—F+-A=1-H 12 542 3,279 169 4,002
Accumulated depreciation and BHEREESSE
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-2F-A-H 27 531 2,178 533 4,069
Charge for the year REERY 2 52 482 4 540
Disposal e (105) - (311) - (416)
Exchange difference ERER 29 38 115 100 282
As at 31 December 2010 and at N-E-EE+-A=1-H
1 January 2011 k=%——%—-R-H 153 621 3,064 637 4,475
Charge for the year TEERY 2 34 517 - 613
Disposal e (145) (166) (1529 (475) 2,309)
Exchange difference ERES - 15 71 7 93
At 31 December 2011 WZE——F+-F=1-H 10 504 2,189 169 2,872
Net carrying amount: RESE:
As at 31 December 2011 WZE—%+-A=1-H 2 38 1,090 - 1,130
As at 31 December 2010 RZE-FF+-A=1-H 4 71 1,087 - 1112

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16. EIRBRA
HK$’000
FHEIT
Cost: 5%
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and RZZE—ZTF—H—1"
1 January 2011 —Z— $$+: =+—H
NZFT——F—H—H 1,352
Disposals e (1,352)
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F+_H=+—H —
Accumulated amortisation: Eetigsy -
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and RZZ2—ZTF—H—H "
1 January 2011 —E-EHF+_-A=+—H
M—_ZT——%—H—H 1,352
Written back on disposal R O (1,352)
At 31 December 2011 N-_E——&F+—-_A=+—81 _
Net carrying amount: AREEE :
As at 31 December 2011 NW—E——F+=-_A=+—H —
As at 31 December 2010 NZE—FTF+_A=1+—H —
The amount represented direct development costs A RTE LR [ SRR AE I R AR
incurred for the development of “Advanced Distribution PRES z BERMABKRABBAME I

and Transportation Systems” less government grant, and NEAED —FH#H -
was amortised on a straight-line basis over three years.
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HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B.EE
2011 2010
—F——% —ZT-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHT
Cost/valuation: A, hE
At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—HBK+=AH
=+—H 226,668 226,668
Accumulated amortisation and S RO E S
impairment losses:
At 1 January n—H—H
— Amortisation — #H 65,837 35,417
— Impairment — RE 71,361 16,338
Amortisation for the year FERE 18,836 30,420
Impairment for the year FARIE 29,981 55,023
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—~H 186,015 137,198
Net carrying amount: BRTEFE
As at 31 December R+—A=+—~H 40,653 89,470

The intangible assets represent an exclusive right of
usage of Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On Web
Permit ({2 B 4845 E 15 B2 &0 B 7F 7] 5%) (the “Permit”)
granted by the holder of the Permit (the “Holder”) to a
subsidiary of the Company under an exclusive
agreement entered into between that subsidiary of the
Company and the Holder. The Permit commenced on 1
October 2007 and will expire on 30 September 2015.
The fair value of the Permit on the date of acquisition of
that subsidiary by the Company has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Messrs. BMI
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. Messrs. BMI
Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar assets.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The recoverable amount of the Permit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. For the
purpose of the impairment test, the recoverable amount
of the Permit is in accordance with valuation prepared by
Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 3 °/4;-year period up to the
expiration date of the Permit and a pre-tax discount rate
of 28.41% (2010: 24.69%) with an average 50% (2010:
50%) growth rate. This growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin. Such estimates are based on the past
performance by holding the Permit and management’s
expectations for the market development.

The valuation of the Permit as at 31 December 2011 was
RMB33,000,000 (2010: RMB76,000,000) equivalent to
approximately HK$40,653,000 (2010: HK$89,470,000).
Further impairment of approximately HK$29,981,000
(2010: HK$55,023,000) was charged to the profit or
loss. The circumstance leading to the impairment of the
Permit was mainly due to the slowdown of growth rate of
subscribers of IPTV services arising from keen
competition within the market.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

WML EE (&)

Rz RS EBRIETEFEREA
ETETE BREIANE  Fa&E

AR ENREBEESRTHERA
RIEAREEEB ECHBEER S
IR M REGFEREMSH - ZHHB
FEERE=XNNS 2 = FHEEFA#E
JE i BB - EBRBATEBAIR K 5£28.41%
TE—T4F 1 2469%)  MFEHERER
BIB50(ZFE—FF :50%) - LB RE
TR BRI ERRBIET T EBE
EETEZFYRABER - 5TEFEHA
BEZHMHNETZRELEBRERSR
AN Bental ETREENHEE
REF - AEFT HIRBEF AT IR
BAERANEERBYEMIGERIEHH#ET -

FAERE——F+_RA=+—
Azt E A AR 330000005 =
T —ZF: AR #76,0000007T )"
 E B 440,653,000 T( = T —
=T £ 89,470,000 T ) #E — F R
& #929,981,000/8 T( =& — T 4F:
55,023,000 70) RE&= Nk - LFF A&
BEREZIEHEEB AT HERT MY
SHENPEERBAP 2B REMERN
B o

18. M B A B 2

The Company
AAT
2011
—e——%
HK$’000
TERT

2010
—E-TF
HK$’000
FHIT

Investment in unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

RERIF LML -
& Y B /B8 2 R 3R0R

(DN

14,473
143,728

14,473
302,862

Less: Impairment losses W REEE

158,201
(123,977)

317,335
(283,111)

34,224 34,224

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 18. R MBAT 2 (&)

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 32 to consolidated financial statements.

FEM AP B 1 B 2 BB R R
B R EREEER -

RRABEEMB AT ZFBHNGA M
KR MIFES2 o

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BSRHthFEULARTR
The Group The Company
XEEH AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
-F——F —T-TF ZB——F —ZT-IZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FEXT FET
Trade receivables SN - — - —
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FBRFIE - 24 &

other receivables Hith pE U BE 70 8,121 11,347 46 46
8,121 11,347 46 46

The credit terms granted by the Group to customers are
determined on a case-by-case basis with reference to
the size of service contracts, recurrent services provided
to sales with the customers and their credit history. The
Group makes provision for trade receivables based on
specific review. Provision is made against trade
receivables after considering the amount due,
creditability of customers and other qualitative factors.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEEREFPREHZEERRDIZER
BENEE RAZSELPHERHRZH
ERBREEZEBEFLZENBRE
o AR ERERIBRE 5 KRR
FHEE - AEEeNEEI B
EPEEREMEERRZREEHEI
BRAR(E S -

SERNBERRZ B HEUEERZER

2011 2010

—B——% T -FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FH&T

0 to 30 days 0ZF30K = —
Total trade receivables B 5 EWER KB R = —

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
The credit period of the Group’s trade receivables ranges
from 60 days to 90 days. For certain customers with
long-estimated relationship and good past histories, a
longer credit period may be granted.

No interest was charged on the trade receivables. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.
The management of the Group monitors the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and considers

19.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

B 5 R HEWARER (22
AEEZEZERRERZEEHN TR
60Z=90H - LB THEHMKIBFEREABEREL
BARTTEH2EFEME  EREEH
AL -

ZEE SRR TITFR - AEEH
B EEHRTEEAERR - A&E
ZEREBERSEMBESER K
CeFE URSDEREZRE 25

adequate impairment loss has been recognised for HRAETHREEE(WNER) . HEZES
irrecoverable amount, if necessary. None of the trade JE U BR 25 B HA sk IS o
receivable is either past due or impaired.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20. IR RIINSZEEY
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—T——5F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAT
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEH 655 6,504

Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by the
Group with an original maturity of three months or less
which are interest-bearing at prevailing saving deposits
rates in the PRC is 0.5% (2010: 0.36%) per annum.

RITEHRBEERAEEEEMRE A
AZEANEERMZEITER iR
FEREIRITHEEGFHRIEGFE  FHEA
05% (=ZF—=FF :0.36%) °

TSMEE (R BRAF
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21. B RHEMEMIRR

The Group The Company
F&EHE EAT]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——F —T-ZTF ZB—HF —ZT-Z
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HIK$'000
FHET FHAT FHET FHT
Trade payables B SRR = 21,964 - -
Accruals and other payables FE12 % A & E
FEfTRRSR 36,172 52,802 4,758 5,395
Advance payments from BE#RR
customers - 174 — —
36,172 74,940 4,758 5,395

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of

AR P R AN SR B R AR A5 e R 2 B
ATEARBRMERR 2 B S EAERR

completion of services provided by the suppliers to the IR ¢
Group, is as follows:
2011 2010
—F——F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET
Over 150 days i@ 150 K - 21,964
Total trade payable B I ENRRABER - 21,964
22. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 22, T[RIRER
The Group and the Company AEEREFAT
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2010 R_T—TF—-H—H —
Liability component of the Convertible Notes FRNEBEITAIBRREE 2
issued during the year =N 72,004
Imputed interest expense charged HEMNEAZ X 1,537
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—HK
(shown as non-current liabilities) —T—%—H—H
(BT RIERBARE) 73,541
Issue of shares upon conversion of IR AT R E S & BT D
convertible bond (17,537)
Imputed interest expense charged HEMNERZ M 5,711
At 31 December 2011 (shown as current liabilities) R —Z——F+_-H=+—H
(BTRRARBEE) 61,715

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the Note Instrument Agreements dated on
11 October 2010, the Company issued convertible notes
at a nominal value of HK$86,349,999 at zero coupon
interest, of which the HK$10,077,044 was issued to
Lucky Peace Limited, a Company wholly owed by the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Qiu Yue and
HK$76,272,955 was issued to Asian Dynamics
International Limited, a shareholder of the Company, for
a term of two years.

The convertible notes holders may assign or transfer the
whole or any part of the convertible notes to any party
subject to the Company’s approval. Meanwhile, the
Company may at any time after the issue of the
convertible notes up to and including the maturity date,
redeem the outstanding principal amount of notes by
payment of cash in amount equivalent to the outstanding
principal amount.

The convertible notes holders may at any business day
from the six months after the issuance of the convertible
notes falling on the second anniversary from the date of
issue of convertible notes convert the whole or any part
of the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.1 each at the conversion price of
HK$0.218 per conversion share.

The convertible notes contain two components: liability
and equity components. The fair values of the liability
component of the convertible notes are measured using
a market interest rate of approximately 9.503% for an
equivalent non-convertible note. The remaining balance,
representing the equity conversion component, is
included in the equity under convertible notes reserve.

On 9 February 2011, a convertible notes holder
converted the convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$18,857,000 into 86,500,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per
share.

22,

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

R EENR (2

BEBHA-T—TFF+A+—BZE
BXEHZ AQA%TTHEIE
86,349,999 B T2 E R AR EE - B
110,077,044 B TT 2 AIA R R EHIT T
Lucky Peace Limited (ZX A A1 #1172 = £F
MEE2EHEBZRA) 5
76,272,955/ 8 T Z AT AR R IR R AT T
Asian Dynamics International Limited ( 7%

RABR) - REIME -

AMBEERFE AN ERLERE 2K
MO ABRRERFERMAL  HELAE
BARBZHAETAIEE - A - AR
AARAT AR REEITARRKREREA
(EEZRBREZB) LBAEMER - &
BXNEERNHARLBASE RSN
B BEEMRREL B RIBARESE -

MR ERFEATRARRERET
#%eMAzAR =K EEEITAH
BRfRETE —EBAF H LA ERN —EZ
¥H RABEBEERAEBRM0.218%E
T BATB R A BRRER LB AR
NAREFREE 1B Tz Tk -

AR ZEE B EREDD - AEBD KL
D o ATRBREBREEBH AT
BEERBETATERBRERE2TMHEEELY
9.503% 5T & ° 88 T af {5 (BRI #E 2 8 40 &)
D) ANBRIRREIEFEH T 2 -

RZE——F_ANH  —FAJBEE
BREAEARLBRESR0218EILIEA
£ %818,857,000/8 T 2 A A i 2= 9% i
7%86,500,000 fx A2 &) F @AKo

TSMEE (R BRAF
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22. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont’d)
On 24 June 2011, a convertible notes holder converted
the convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$1,475,860 into 6,770,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per
share.

Imputed interest on the convertible bond for the year
ended 31 December 2011 is calculated using the
effective interest method by applying the effective interest
rate of 9.503% per annum.

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The major deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years
are summarized below:

22,

23.

o[ iR SRR (42)
RZZE——FAZ+WmA —HKAR
REEFEALRLBRESRC218EB T
EARE%581,475,860 8 02 AT AR EIE 5
#56,770,000 AR B E @AY

RBEE-_T——F+-_A=1+—BLHF
BB EREEN B RABRN X
EIRERFRNEIS503%THE ©

BEHIEE &
REERBEFECRRL EBBREH
HAERASHELAOT :

The Group *EE
Intangible Convertible

assets notes Total

W EE oREER st

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000

T TFHET FHT

At 1 January 2010 RZE—FF—H—H — — -

Charge to profit or loss FFAERE 22,368 — 22,368

Recognised directly in equity BENERTER — 2,367 2,367
At 31 December 2010 and R-ZT—ZTF

at 1 January 2011 +—A=+—8xK

—F——%—H—H 22,368 2,367 24,735

Charge to profit or loss FAERE (12,204) — (12,204)

Recognised directly in equity BHEAERTER — (558) (558)
At 31 December 2011 RZT——4F

+=-—A=+—H 10,164 1,809 11,973

98 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 23. IEERIEERE(E)
The Company ANT
Convertible
notes
GIE: Y4
HK$’000
FHETT
At 1 January 2010 RZZE— ?E A—H —
Recognised directly in equity BEERE=TER 2,367
At 31 December 2010 and at RZE—ZF+-_A=+—HEK
1 January 2011 *2——% A—H 2,367
Recognised directly in equity BEEAERTER (558)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=-A=+—H 1,809

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset has
not been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses
due to the unpredictability stream of future taxable profits
that will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilized.

R¥EHR - HRREETERT Al MBS
BB 2 AR BRG] - BARFARE
BIEBRERDRERAEE

SHARE CAPITAL 24. IBAX
Number of shares Amount
kipEE it |
HK$'000
FET
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each): 5£mﬂx$(iﬂxﬁﬁ 018
LaEk)
Balance at 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010, RZE-ZF—f—H —ZE-%F
1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 +-A=+-H ZE——F
—A—-BkZ= T--E-ﬁﬂ
=t—Hz# 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of BETRGCRA(BREE
HK$0.1 each) 0.1z LEK)
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-E-ZTE-F-Hz#& 963,417,986 96,342
Issue of shares by exercise of share options (note 1) FfT{E & B M 27T M (s 1) 25,000,000 2,500
Balance at 31 December 2010 and at RZE-EF+-[=1t-8R
1 January 2011 “E——F-R-HZEH 088,417,986 98,842
Issue of shares by conversion of SBABRRREMETRG
convertible notes (note 2) (Ft5E2) 93,270,000 9,327
Issue of shares by exercise of share options (note 3)  FfT{E 8 B E M 27Tk (7 (FfH3E3) 1,000,000 100
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZZ——&E+-A=+-A74& 1,082,687,986 108,269

TSMEE (R BRAF
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

Notes:

(1)

On 29 June 2010 and 15 December 2010, an aggregate
number of 25,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of
HK$0.10 each were issued as a result of an exercise of
share options granted by the Company under a specific
mandate on 5 September 2007 at an aggregate
consideration of HK$6,875,000 at the exercise price of
HK$0.275 per share, of which HK$4,375,000 was
credited to share premium.

On 9 February 2011, 86,500,000 ordinary shares with
par value of HK$0.10 each were issued at a conversion
of the principal price of HK$18,857,000 of the zero-
coupon convertible notes issued by the Company on 11
October 2010 within 24 month maturity, at the conversion
price of HK$0.218 per ordinary share. The conversions
gave rise to a credit to share capital of HK$8,650,000
and the remaining balance of approximately
HK$10,706,000 was credited to share premium.

On 24 June 2011, 6,770,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.10 each were issued at a conversion of
the principal price of HK$1,475,860 of the zero-coupon
convertible notes issued by the Company on 11 October
2010 within 24 month maturity, at the conversion price of
HK$0.218 per ordinary share. The conversions gave rise
to a credit to share capital of HK$677,000 and the
remaining balance of approximately HK$883,000 was
credited to share premium.

On 24 June 2011, 1,000,000 ordinary shares with par
value of HK$0.10 each were issued as a result of an
exercise of share options granted by the company under
a specific mandate on 5 September 2007 at a
consideration of HK$275,000 at the exercise price of
HK$0.275 per share, of which HK$175,000 was credited
to share premium.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

24. RE(E

GLE
(M

RZE—ZTFRAZTNARZZE—ZF
F+-_A+EHB RERERITEE
02758 TITEARFIRIE - T LF
NARBED ZFRIREMR L 2 Bk
7 - B AR R B EE 1T A $£25,000,000
B EEI0E T @A KB
A5t46,875,000/8 7T © HFF 4,375,000
BB R ARM HE

R-Z——F-FAH RIEBKAQF
RZZE—ZF+A+—BEITZZTET
B ZEE (A -+ HEA R 2K
418,857,000/ T - BT EREE
0.107 7T Z 86,500,000 A% & & A% » 3,
BREASREER0218EBIIT - ZER
B A IR R # BR 8,650,00078 7T © B8
T % ##910,706,00078 7T £ 51 AR 15

R-ZT——ENAZHIEE - REBR
ANAN_ZT—ZTF+A+—ABTZZ
BRI A EE (R -+ mEARNEIE)
ZRE 1,475,860 Lk - BITERE
fE0.1078 7L .2 6,770,000 i% L @BA% - 3,
BEATREERKR0218ET - ZEH
HE L AR IR 677,000/8 7T - BT
KE#R#) 883,000 8 L E R AR EE -

RNZE——FXA-+MBE - EERE
BAEAESRITEME0.275 B LITHEAR
ARRBE T +FAARBER 2
PR RE T 15 2 BERRAE - B AR B3
771,000,000 i &R EE 0108 L 2 &
B KB A&275000%8 £ H A
175,000 8L E T ARMDEE -
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25. RESERVES 25. #i&
The Group AEH
Convertible
notes
Share Capital  Translation reserve  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve Tk losses Total
RivEE R iidng- Rk it @t

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L T T i Thx AL

At1 January 2010 HW-2-25-f-A 119,693 26,020 (1,119) - (310359 (165,759)
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - (67,716) (67,716)
Exchange difference arising on BERNERELY

translation of foreign operations ERER - - (2,343 - - (2,343)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ REE2 AR ESE - - (2,343) - (67,716) (70,059)
Issue of shares by exercise of RRIEREm T

share options fln 4,375 - - - - 4,375
Cost on issue of shares LAROAA ® - - — _ @)

Issue of convertible notes for settlement BT ATAREBEIZ (T

of balance of consideration of WERBARERL

interest in subsidliary RERR - - - 14,346 - 14,346
Deferred tax liabilties on issue of BARERE

convertible notes EEHBRE - - - (2,367) - (2,367)
At 31 December 2010 and RZE-FF+ZA=+-H

at 1 January 2011 k=E——-F-P-H 124,060 26,020 (3,456) 11,979 (378,075) (219,472)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - 846 846
Exchange difference arising on BERINEBEEL

translation of foreign operations ELER - - 2,274 - - 2,274
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ REE2 AR LS - - 2274 - 846 3,120
Issue of shares by exercise of RERREMRTRG

share options 175 - - - - 175
Cost onissue of shares BAROKAE (34) - - - - (34)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REBRTRRZER

convertible notes Gt 11,589 - - (3,379) - 8,210
Deferred tax liabilties of convertible notes  AIAREE v ETHEEE - - - 558 - 558
At 31 December 2011 R=F-—-£+=R=1+-8 135,790 26,020 (1,182 9,158 (377,229) (207,443)

MR (2R BRAF 101



Annual Report 2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR BT R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

25. RESERVES (Cont'd) 25. f#fE (&)
The Company AAT]
Convertible
notes
Share  Contributed reserve Accumulated
premium surplus THR losses Total
RiHEE B4R Effits iR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAL TET TAL TR
Asat 1 January 2010 W-Z-2F-5-A 119,603 13,682 —  [oogse)  (67.281)
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - M7t (117
Issue of shares by exercise of share options R BEREm TR 4375 - - - 4375
Costs onissue of shares EORHRA ® - - - @)
Issue of convertible notes for settlement of BT AREE N S TUE
balance of consideration of interest in subsidiary KB AR 7 X B&H - - 14,346 - 14,346
Deferred tax liabilties on issue of BmaREE BT
convertible notes WEEE - - 2,367) - (2,367)
At 31 December 2010 and at WZE-EE+-A=1-H
1 January 2011 k-E——F-F-H 124,060 13,882 11,979 (318,567) (168,646)
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (8,590) (8,590)
Issue of shares by exercise of share options RiTRERENETRA 175 - - - 175
Costs on issue of shares EORHRA (34) - - - (34)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REATHREERETRD
convertible notes 11,589 - (3379 - 8,210
Deferred tax liabilties of convertible notes HRREE EEHBEE - - 558 - 568
At 31 December 2011 R-%-—5+-A=t-H 135,790 13,882 9,158 (327,157) (168,327)

ARBZEHBBREARFCDEITER
rEEERNEEEHE AEBRIERK
MRBEZMB AR ZEEFEZIER -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value
of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares
as at the date of the group reorganization.

102
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RESERVES (Cont’d)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium, capital redemption reserve and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium, capital redemption reserve and
contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital account.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of the
share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares as at the date of the
group reorganization and the waive of loans by a related
party on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

3(a).

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component of outstanding convertible notes issued by
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in note
3(0).

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have
any reserves available for distribution to shareholders of
the Company (2010: Nil).

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to a specific mandate granted by the
Company’s shareholders at the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting held on 4 October 2007, the Company
granted 97,840,073 share options entitling the holders of
the share options to subscribe for 97,840,073 ordinary
shares at the exercise price of HK$0.75 per share.

During the year, 1,000,000 ordinary shares (2010:
25,000,000 shares) were issued to the holders upon
their exercise of share options at the exercise price of
HK$0.275 per share. On 5 September 2011, there were
71,840,073 share options that fall to be exercised at the
exercise price of HK$0.275 per share were lapsed. At
the end of the reporting period, there were no
outstanding share options (2010: 72,840,073 share
options) that fall to be exercised.

The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

25.

26.
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fitfE (=
BIERSBEATIE(ETA)  BRMHH
B BABOEERESRSHTHSR
FRE MR TIBRT - AATRE
TIRSEN AR S - ARG RE - BA
EEEERESRRELDE -

(i) {fiﬂ%;ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%fﬁﬂ Ha

(i) HEEZAIEREERAMBRSER
HAB@ERDBITRAMR A -

AEB ERFBEDERARADETE
B zHAEBENEESAEE BEBRD
AR W B P 8 A B 2 B B B At 1B 48
B ANEEALIR -_ZTMF_A—
HEARERZER -

BEERERMAERBERIIER ZH
BHRAEL 2 ELZ8 - W AREN
i 3(0) FT#5 2 @ RTERER BRI

AR SRR (A A AR IR B E 3() P L A]
BB 2 SR BORER AR BIA
BATIWAREE R 7 AR R AP ©

NBEER  RAREBERA KNAT
WETMAED IR T ARBRE 2 FEE
ZETF )

HE R HE
BEARNIKER-_ZZLF+ANAH
BOIZARRBRREIRG LR ZHE
R AE - AR R H 97,840,073 MBS A%
o BRAERERE ANIRITEESR
0.758 7T © REE 97,840,073 ILL@A% ©

FR - ARBIRBIRERSE ARITERE
FR%0.275 BT TR BARER - MERIE
A% #e5 A A %17 1,000,000 B 3@ (=
T —FE : 25000,0000%) c R—FB——
FNARB  BIRTEESR0.275ET
1718 271,840,073 (D BB T & kW -
RMEBR MESFIIEZIRITERE
AE( =T — T4 : 72,840,073 BB K
) o

AAB BRI EE R B THERERTE

TSMEE (R BRAF
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27. DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of subsidiaries deregistered by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows:

Unallocated segment
AIR Logistics International Holding Limited (BVI);

AIR Logistics International Holding Limited (HK);

Forest Technology International Limited;
Asian Information Resources Investment (Holdings)
Limited;
BN R SRR B R A A
BINKE @RI ERBR AR
(together the “Unallocated Segment”)

Logistics services segment
Asian Information Resources Techlogic Limited (the
“Logistics Services Segment”)

(Note:  Asian Information Resources Techlogic Limited was
the holding company of Advant Development Limited,
EVER-OK International Forwarding Co., Limited and
IEEREEEERRAR)

The net assets/(liabilities) of Unallocated Segment and
Logistics Services Segment at the respective dates of
deregistration were as follows:

27. FREREEAPHE A ]

ARBRBE-F——F+-A=+—
AL F R R B AT 2 HEmT -

ROE7EB

AIR Logistics International Holding
Limited (BVI) :

AIR Logistics International Holding
Limited (HK) :

Forest Technology International Limited :

Asian Information Resources
Investment (Holdings) Limited :

BN AR A R AR

BINA SRR ERER AR
(SBR[ R DER])

Wi AR5 53 &8
Asian Information Resources Techlogic

Limited ([ 47 BR 7% 2 &8 1)

(Kz :  Asian Information Resources Techlogic
Limited /& Advant Development
Limited * EVER-OK International
Forwarding Co. Limited }2T #1838
BREEAERARZIERAT)

ROBEDIRDRRB D2 EE, (8B
18 FENS BEEREMM B BT

Logistics
Unallocated Services
Segment Segment Total
RSB  VRRFE D a3
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAETT FET FET
Trade and other receivables 8 5 N E A EAR X 361 211 572
Trade and other payables B 5 I H fth FEFBRFX (180) (24,321) (24,501)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8%)FE 181 (24,110) (23,929)
Gain/(loss) on deregistration AR S|
(E18) (181) 24,110 23,929

The deregistered subsidiaries during the year recorded a
net gain of approximately HK$23,929,000 and had no
impact on the Group’s operating cash flows.

104 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are as
follows:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of
approximately HK$5,276,000 (2010:
HK$6,033,000) is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and is not due for repayment within the next twelve
months.

Amount due to immediate holding company, Asian
Dynamics International Limited approximately
HK$21,411,000 (2010: HK$19,385,000) is
unsecured, bearing interest at the annual rate of 5%
and is not due for repayment within the next twelve
months.

Interest paid and payable to the immediate holding
company for the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,024,000 (2010: HK$939,000).

During the year, the Group received advertising
service income of approximately HK$5,515,000
(2010: HK$NIl) from B M FHE S BER A7), a
Company controlled by Mr. Qiu Ye, the director of
the Company. These transactions were carried out
on normal commercial terms and with reference to
prevailing market price.

In last year, convertible notes at a nominal value of
HK$86,349,999 at zero coupon interest, of which
the HK$10,077,044 was issued to Lucky Peace
Limited, a company wholly owed by the executive
director of the Company, Mr. Qiu Yue and
HK$76,272,955 was issued to Asian Dynamics
International Limited, a shareholder of the
Company. There was no convertible notes issued
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

28. EXFEALRS
ADRREMBAR (BRI ZEEA
1) 7 BB HEREAE B BT UM
8 MARAKFNRE AEEEL
HWEEALTZ X FHEBRBENT

(i)

(iii)

ENEZESEHEZRELY A
5,276,000 (= & — T F:
6,033,000 7T) HEKIF - £ EX
BEARKI12MELREE -

JE < B B 42 1% A B Asian Dynamics
International Limited X 1B 4 A&
21,411,000 m( = T — & & :
19,385,000 L) &K - 1= F
E5%rt ERBHERRKI12BAR

fiE -

FRBENREMEEERAGZ
N E# 51,024,000 T (ZT—F
£ : 939,000/87T) °

REFR > NREIEBREMNPHE
EBRAF(—REAARBESL
ML A RS 2 A R)) W B E S RS
WA 495,515,000 L ( — T —=F
FTRETL)  c ZERHINIE—R
R EGERITAL L ERITHERET °

= - H1E86,349,999 B L2 T8
AR SRR - K 10,077,04478 7T
17 F Lucky Peace Limited (N2 ]
WITESOHWAEEZERE LA
Al) + $4076,272,955 7% 7T Al 1T
¥ Asian Dynamics International
Limited (R AFRIRE) c BHEZZT
——FF+ A=+ —HILFEHE
BATRAIHARRIR o

TSMEE (R BRAF
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28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. EXEEATRZ S ()

(Cont’d)
(v)  The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as follows:

v) BEENTEZEEBEABRTRZH
o

The Group
AEE

2011 2010

—F——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Short-term benefits SEEEEY ] 1,443 1,980

Post-employment benefit R ET 23 24

1,466 2,004

The remuneration of directors and key executives REERTFTEEEAS ZH IR FHH

in determined by the remuneration committee FEOREEZAZEBETEBSE
having regard to the performance of individuals and EFE o

market trends.
29. COMMITMENTS 29. KiE
Operating lease commitments EEIAERIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

RMEHR  AEEIRBETITHELCE
HMEARBRIN s &ERERELE
N

2011 2010

—T——F —T-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FHET

Within one year —F R 225 180
In the second to fifth years, F_ZERF

inclusive (BIEEEME) 80 138

305 318

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fIFTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a BBIRZE5
The Group
X EEH
2011 2010
—T—%F —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets HEEE
Loans and receivables ERMERERER (B
(including cash and cash equivalent) & kESZ(EY)
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & E IR K 8,121 11,347
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTEE 655 6,504
8,776 17,851
Financial liabilities M aE
Trade and other payables 2 5 Rk M ERIRRK 36,172 74,940
Amount due to a director BN —REEHIA 5,276 6,033
Amount due to immediate e BT AR RIE
holding company 21,411 19,385
Convertible notes CIE Y 61,715 73,541
124,574 173,899
The Company
AAT
2011 2010
—T——5F —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables (including BERNEWIRR (B
cash and cash equivalent) He RBE2ZEY)
Trade and other receivables Z 5N E M IR R 46 46
Amount due from subsidiaries AN NI RS 34,224 34,244
34,270 34,290
Financial liabilities BB aE
Trade and other payables B NEMERER 4,758 5,395
Amount due to a director EN—ZEEHE 46 210
Amount due to subsidiaries FERT M B R R F0B 4,103 2,688
Amount due to immediate JE EEIER AR
holding company E 21,897 19,873
Convertible notes EIEY S 61,715 73,541
92,519 101,707

TSMEE (R BRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables, amount due to
a director, amount due to immediate holding
company and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(i) Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency turnover and cost of services and
certain trade receivables, bank deposits and
trade and other payables are denominated in
foreign currencies other than the respective
functional currencies of the relevant group
entities and thus expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The management continuously
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.

30. BIBEIR(E)

b) MBERKRETERBE
AEEYIEHETAREESR
HihFEBE S - B4 RIRITAE S -
EHREMBENES  ERNEER
T8 - RERTE AR A BB & AT
R - WERBTEYFBEER
MR ST o T DI S B
ITAZHEBER BETEER
(SMEREFIE@RR) « EE@EB
BRABESER LR IAREE
LR B - BB EY
ZREK  BEERELETEE

R
(i) SRR
SN

REEETHERBLAINE
MEEEBERBKA M
ETEZRKERR - R1TE
XRBHREMBENERRTS
NBEBEERRZHEBEYEE
BEEINZ INEFHE - AR
AEBEAREINERR - B
BEEZUERES AR I
ERFEEEZEEPINER

LA
a0
2

o

The carrying amounts of the Group’s REH 7 ERINEEBEE
significant foreign currency denominated REEGERHEEHRZE
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at A{EWT
the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
=3 B
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——F -5 B—H —ZT-Z
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HIK$'000
FHERT TBT T#&T FET
Renminbi AR 5,311 13,411 30,696 67,262

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)
(i) Market risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of
fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the functional
currency exchange rates of the company
against the Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease
in loss for the year where the functional
currency of the Group strengthen 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the
functional currency of the Group against the
Renminbi, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss, and the
balances below would be negative.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

30. AT R (E)
b) HEEMRESEREE(E)

() HEEEE)
BB T
AEBFZEAHAREED
ZEE TRHNAEER
RAIZMEEBE R ARK 2
P& R b7 N T B 5% 2 8%
T - 5% —MEBETEA
BHEITINE @ B 2 NI IE 3R
BERAZBERELE  RE
EREBHINEERNEIESH
EfaPAEE - A X
RESMBEAEET AN
INESTEZEMIEE - WA
RN TE R 7 5% B B) M
BHEBEEBZFERK 2B
B THEHRRAEERZ
e EBE AREFHES%
B FEBEBZRD - BARX
EENEEELARKEE
B5% ' AlgyEiEEESH
BRERZEZE W&
Heeag-

Effect on loss for
the year end and
accumulated losses

HeERBERRETEE Effect on equity
zee Hignzie
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g——% —T-TF <—B——§ —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHEIT FHET F&TT
Renminbi ARHE 1,269 2,693 1,269 67,262

TSMEE (R BRAF
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(i)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risks

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to bank balances (see note
20). The management considers the Group’s
exposure of the bank balances to interest rate
risk is not significant as they have a short
maturity period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of variable-rate bank balances at the
end of the reporting period was the amount
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 December 2011 would decrease/increase
by HK$2,600 (decrease/increase by 2010:
HK$32,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk on its variable-rate bank balances.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

30. BIBEIR(E)

(b)

MEEREEREE ()
() AERE ()

AREBEZHERMEERE
EHRRITAER(RMFE20)
BEERR HRRITHEH
ZEHRREE  MAKEE
HIRTTREBRZFIRRBRTK

TIEREE DI RRIBER R
& HRE S 2 M XS
o ZOMBRERBEHR
ZEBRERRITERLI SR
REFAREESEMRE

iK% R & EF+,/ T & 50 @A
EMAEEMEHERET
B O AKEBHE-_ZT——F
+-A=t+—HItEEEIE
158  / #8 402,60078 7T (=
T T FE: D HE
32,00087T) * FEHMKAE
Bt S MRBITEGTE
HZBRESRA R -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(i)

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties, is the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimize the credit risk in relation
to trade receivables, the management has
strengthened the credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the
management reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each reporting
date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the management considers that
the Groups credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are
reputable banks or banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

30. AT R (E)
b) HEEMRESEREE(E)

(i) EEEBGEE

R-F——F+=-A=+—
B HEXSHFREETT
BFEEMSEHAEEE
REBRARZEREER
% REEMBAREKSDAE
oERRVBEE KM
=

STEERERKE SRR
ZIEERR  EEED R
FEERE FEEHLLEM
EREF BRIERIRE
TEWREIAAREER - It
s EEEERETEMEM
BHEHRBEHRZ AR
B8 R AREELEZ
SRIEVE T 90 2 Rl 18 &5 18
woptmE  BEEEESF
RR/AEEZEERRERXR
AR o

nBEEZ EERRAR
HTARZZHFIERE
BEREEFREES TS
AR B BAFEZIRTT

TSMEE (R BRAF
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies

30. AT R (E)
(b) BHEEGEERBE(E)

(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (i) RENE R R EEE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the TEBEERDE AR
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash B gERReRAESEE
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by 2K BERFEEE
the management to finance the Group’s REEEZKFE - AR
operations and mitigate the effects of RAB2EERTE MR
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies SMEB 2 HE - BITRG
on issuing of shares and borrowings from RREBBEEATZBER
related parties as a significant sources of SECZFRESNR
funding.
The following tables detail the Group and the TERFANAEEBRARTZ
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for HBAEZHBTAENEHRE
its financial liabilities which are based on the o BERAEERAR A
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities AWERKER 2 &FAHAM
and the earliest date on which the Group and FECUBAaERIRES
the Company can be required to pay. e
The Group AEE
More than
On demand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total
3months  than1 year Morethan ~ cash flows carrying
BEXE =AML 1year F#HE  amountat
PR3ER  EOR-£ RiE-=  HenuE RESE
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
2011 Z§—-& Thr Thn Thn T T
Trade and other payables BAREERER 36,172 - - 36,172 36,172
Amount due to a director EN-4E535E - - 5,216 5,216 5,216
Amount due to immediate ERERBRAT
holding company R - - 21,411 21,411 21,41
Convertible notes THEZE - 61,715 - 61,715 61,715
36,172 61,715 26,687 124,574 124,574
2010 “3-%F
Trade and other payables LS REMENER 74940 - - 74940 74940
Amount due to a director EN-ZEE7E - - 6,033 6,033 6,033
Amount dus to immediate ENEZERAT
holding company B - - 19,385 19,385 19,385
Convertie notes ThREE - - 73,541 73,541 73,541
74940 - B9 MaKM 17389

1 12 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

30. AT R (E)
(b) BHEEGEERBE(E)

(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d) (i) HEELEIGEE (E)
The Company AT
More than
On demand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total
3months  than 1 year Morethan  cash flows carrying
BEXS  =ZERNL 1year KBHE  amountat
HiR3fER BOR-E B  HekEE RESE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
At 31 December 2011 Z%--E+ZA=t-H Tin Tin Tin Firn Firn
Trade and other payable B REMERNER 4,758 - - 4,758 4,758
Arount due to a director Ef-2E578 - = 46 46 4
Amount due to subsidiaries B ATIZE 4,103 - - 4,103 4,103
Amount due to immediate EREZERAR
holding company E] - - 21,897 21,897 21,897
Convertile notes THEZE - 61,715 - 61,715 61,715
8,861 61,715 21,943 92,519 92,519
At 31 December 2010 “E-ZE+-f=1-H
Trade and other payable BAREMENES 53% - - 53% 5,395
Amount due to a director ER—RE258 - - 210 210 210
Amount due to subsidiaries  ENMBATEE 2,688 - - 2,088 2,088
Amount due to immediate
holding company N EZERATE - - 19,873 19,873 19,873
Convertile notes TARSE - - 73,541 73541 73541
8,083 - We4 100707 104707
(c) Fair value (c) 2AFE
The fair values of financial assets and financial HHEEERMBEEZAFERZT
liabilities are determined as follows: TIEAEETE

° The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid and
ask prices respectively; and

° The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions.

BB BRI RRF LR
BMEEEZMBEERM
BRBEZAFEDDRZE
Pz M EANEREHE
BRET &

HPHEERMBAELZ
NPEREEBENZTE
BAEE - REEBERAE
REMRBIZMERSHE
BMBEIRZ IR B RO

TSMEE (R BRAF
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(c) Fair value (Cont’d)
Except as detailed in the following table, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values:

30. BIBEIR(E)

() 2AFEE)
BRTRFREIN  EZRR/NTH
WEPERBHERAAR 2 MBEE
MEt B a B BREEEL A FER
=

2011 2010
—F——=F —E-TF
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
BREE 2¥FE BRE{E AFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET T FHIT
Financial liabilities HEaRE
Convertible notes (Note) A% =% (FfisE) 61,715 57,001 73,541 73,803

Note: The fair value of the liability component of
convertible bonds has been calculated by using
effective interest rate of 20.7% (2010: 9.224%) per
annum with reference to the Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Note and credit risk margin.

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the directors of the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
and issue of new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31 December 2011 and 2010.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

31.

MizE AR EEESHH 2 AFEER
B R E RN XR207%( T — T F:
9.224%)  WIKBREBBINEESZIRE
REERBAEMTE -

ErEHE

AEEERREERRE - WRBLHEN
MZBHHERRBIELHE - BER
FFBERERE  AAREERHGAL
SN FRRzBREEE  REBRRER
REBETHEGD RBE-_T——F K=
E-FHE+_A=T—"BULFER A
RS BRIEFEFTE -
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 31.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade and other payables, loan from third
party and shareholders, less cash and cash equivalents,
and excludes discontinued operations. Capital includes
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. The

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

BEXER(E)

AEEMNBEEABLRRERENE
o BB EFEBRUEERANEETF
H-ARFERREIREMENE
R B=ZFREREF BREERE
FEY ATBRERULEERE BN
BREARBHEA AREELD - RREH

gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were AZEBEAGBHLERET :
as follows:
GROUP
FEE
2011 2010
—F——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
Trade and other payables B 5 Nk EMERIRR 36,172 74,940
Amount due to a director FEN—ZESNIE 5,276 6,033
Amount due to immediate FERNT B TR A RIFKRIE
holding company 21,411 19,385
Convertible notes Al RR =% 61,715 73,541
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IRERREEED (655) (6,504)
Net debt BEFE 123,919 167,395
Equity attributable to: THI AT RS
— owners of the company — RRAFEB A (99,174) (120,630)
— non-controlling interests — FEIERE R 11,948 30,213
Total deficit i pinea (87,226) (90,417)
Capital and net debt BERRBEFE 36,693 76,978
Gearing ratio BEAMBLLE 337.72% 217.46%

THEE(ER) ERAT 115
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

32. FEMBAT
RZF——FR=ZF-—FTF+=A
=+—RB  ARRAZHBARFENT :

Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ interest held by the
registered Company
Place of capital FATHE
incorporation/ Form of ERTR Z il
Name operation legal entity BRBKA,/ Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
4] ML EERY  EAEERA #MEF EE  REE  IEER
Asian Information Resources The British Virgin International business US$200  100% —  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands company 20057 REER
EERUAME BEELE
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$ 11,228,290 — 100%  Provision of on-line content and
Limited i BREFEAT 11,228290% 7T related technical services,
TNFEERAT information technology
solutions and consultancy
services and e-commerce
investments
LR A RIEE R R -
EARRBA D R R AR%
REFEBRE
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 — 100%  Provision of freasury functions to
Finance Limited 6 AREFAH VBT group companies
REBRAREERRHS
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 — 100%  Provision of administration
Investment Limited BB BREAAR 2B services to group companies
REBRAREITIRS
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 — 100%  Provision of on-line content and
Marketing Limited ) BRELAA 10,0007 related technical services
R E A RAEERI R
Biztech Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100,000 — 100%  Investment holding
BERRERATR Bl EREAAR 10,000 57T RERR
Vega International Group Ltd The British Virgin International business USs$s  100% - Investment holding
Islands company 5ETT REER
EERNAE Gl I

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

32. XEMBAT (&)

Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ interest held by the
registered Company
capital KATRE

Place of
incorporation/ Form of E#TR Z it bl
Name operation legal entity @RKA,/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
4] EMALEERYE  EAERERA #fEx EE HE IEEH
Guangzhou Vega Capital The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Provision of corporate finance
Consulting Ltd. i BREFAT AR and management consultancy
(BN E BB ARAT) 10,000,007 senvices
REMKRERERTARY
Guangzhou Wavecom The PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 — 100%  Investment holding and provision
Communications and i BREAAT ARE of advertising services
Advertising limited 500,0007C REZRRREEE RS
(BNEREEEEARAT)
South Pearl Limited The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 55%  Provision of internet protocol
(BN ARSI i BREAAT AR television services
BRAR) 20,000,0007 REGHBERRG

TSMEE (R BRAF
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KR BT R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_T——F+_A=+—HIFZE

33. LITIGATION

(@)

On 27 April 2010, Union Resources Educational
Development (Yanjiao) Company Limited
("UREDY”), as the first plaintiff, and Union
Resources (Educational Development)
Limited(“UR”), as the second plaintiff (the
“Plaintiffs”), initiated legal proceedings against the
Company, as the first defendant, and four other
persons, being the second to fifth defendants by
way of the issue of a Writ of Summons in the High
Court of Hong Kong under action number HCA589
of 2010 (the “Writ of Summons”). For further details
of the Writ of Summons and the indorsement of
claim as it pertains to the Company, please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 28 April
2010 and 3 May 2010.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated
3 May 2010, the Board is given to understand that
in the event that the Plaintiffs prosecute the claims
stated in the Writ of Summons, then the Plaintiffs
will claim they are entitled to an award of specific
damages in the sum of RMB9,744,000.

The Board is of the view that in the event that the
plaintiffs are successful in proving the relevant
claims against the Company, and that if the
possible specific damages of RMB9,744,000 and a
possible claim for UREDY’s and UR’s legal costs
are awarded against the Company, that such
awards will not have a material adverse impact on
the Group’s financial position, in the long term.
Provision for the Company’s own legal costs of
approximately HK$2,500,000 has been made in
the consolidated financial statements in previous
year in this respect.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

33. &

HidIN
@R-Z—ZTFMA-—++H B}
B A (FE%8) AR A E (N [UREDY ] -
ERE—REN) RBAER(HEERRE)
BRAR(THEIUR] EAE_REAN)
[(BEAD  BBRAAZMRTAZR])
ARZBBRE R (FbRs =2 —F
F(HCAS89)) * HIANRI(EAE —HE)
MO EMALT(WERE-_EEREE)
RAZEFLR - BEAZREERES
ARz EncE— T BRHEA
NAR—ZEBE—ZFFNA-_F+NBE=-Z
—BEFA=ATIB A M-

BUARBIN_—_F-FFRAA =B TI%#
ZRMEE BEEEHNE MRS AE
TARRFAEZHAR REAKSER
WEERBHETREREARARE
9,744,000 7T °

FExeRA EREAHAAGIRD
ZRBFFBERK B ER - AANA R A
BAXNEHEETEEBEEARE
9,744,000 7T 52 UREDY M URFA[ s R 1€ ~
HAER BRIEARERMEITTY
REEZHBRABRERTFFZE -
RARIEREELEEMBHREFREEA
B2 EREBA#2,500,000 8 TR



33.

34.

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LITIGATION (Cont’d)

(b) On 11 February 2011, the Eastern magistrates’
Court of Hong Kong issued the Five Summonses
to the Company. Each of them alleges that the
Company, contrary to sections 384(1) and 384(6)
of the Securities and Future Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, did provide to the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited a copy of
an announcement containing information which
was false or misleading in a material particular, and
the Company knew or was reckless as to whether
the information was false or misleading in a
particular, as particularized in each of the Five
Summonses. Details please refer to the
announcement dated 16 February 2011.

The Board is of the view that in the event that the
Company is convicted of any or all of the five
summonses, such conviction(s) will not have a
material adverse impact on the Group’s financial
statement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
involved in any litigation or claim of material importance
and there is no litigation or claim of material importance
known to the Board to be pending or threatened against
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no significant events after the reporting
period.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 29 March 2012.

33.

34.

iR e SRR I a
For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=+—ALFE

=) =3
Eﬁﬁlé /Iﬁ\/E\

(b)

B EX P EE N

RZZE—F—_A+—H R
2 & FABT M AR R AR E
E ZAREEHEARGERE
BEBIE ST EES R EGGIE
384(1) £ 384(6) 1§ - M & B S X
ZFBRRBIRE— O AMEIA
ETFHELEZHELBERIERSE
Bip 2 &R MARRME LE
HNEZHEFBERIEREN D
SEBELNENESEERLIBE
B EFRER D - BB RAEH
WEELE —E——F - A+XH
FT{E R -

ExeRn EARRRIER
RER(TAIREE) 2 FFRMKIL
BRAFIFE I & SRR E 2 BB
NBRERTHNZE -

HE_ZT——F

+=A=+—8  ARTREAAHE
AFBEES R MEAFAREE B
MEER A AA AR B
W WAMKRRERAE 2 EAFNK

ENER

BEMEREZSE
REMBRLER A TAEAEE -

35. BRI HE
WERBREOR -_E——&=8
“HABEARTESE AT EET

£
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By Order of the Board
Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012

As at the date of this announcement, the executive Directors of the Company are Mr. Xie Xuan
(Chairman), and Mr. Qiu Yue; the non-executive Director is Mr. Lo Mun Lam Raymond (Vice
Chairman); and the independent non-executive Directors are Mr. Wu Jixue, Dr. Feng Ke and
Myr. Zhang Daorong.

This announcement, for which the directors of Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information
with regard to Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this announcement misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this
announcement have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM
website at www.hkgem.com for at least 7 days from the date of its posting and on the
Company’s website at http://www.airnet.com.hk.



